Public Document Pack

CITY
LONDON

Markets Committee

Date:
Time:
Venue:

Members:

Enquiries:

WEDNESDAY, 29 NOVEMBER 2017

11.30 am

COMMITTEE ROOMS, 2ND FLOOR, WEST WING, GUILDHALL

James Tumbridge (Chairman)
John Scott (Deputy Chairman)
Rehana Ameer

Tom Anderson

Adrian Bastow

Matthew Bell

Peter Bennett

Nicholas Bensted-Smith
Chris Boden

John Chapman

Richard Crossan

Deputy Kevin Everett

Sophie Anne Fernandes

John Fletcher

Angus Knowles-Cutler
Gregory Lawrence

Tim Levene

Martin Newton
tel. no.: 020 7332 3154

Deputy Edward Lord
Alderman Nicholas Lyons

Alderman Professor Michael Mainelli

Andrew Mayer

Deputy Robert Merrett
Andrien Meyers
Deputy Brian Mooney
Deputy Joyce Nash
Stephen Quilter

Ruby Sayed

lan Seaton

Oliver Sells QC

Deputy Dr Giles Shilson
Deputy Tom Sleigh
Deputy John Tomlinson
Michael Welbank

martin.newton@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Lunch will be served in the Guildhall Club at 1pm
N.B. Part of this meeting could be the subject of audio or visual recording

John Barradell
Town Clerk and Chief Executive




10.

11.

AGENDA

Part 1 - Public Agenda
APOLOGIES

MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF
ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

PUBLIC MINUTES

To agree the public minutes of the meeting held on 20 September 2017.
For Decision
(Pages 1 - 6)

REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGETS - 2017/18 AND 2018/19

Joint report of the Chamberlain and the Director of Markets and Consumer Protection.
For Decision
(Pages 7 - 36)

DRAFT DEPARTMENTAL BUSINESS PLAN 2018/19 - MARKETS AND
CONSUMER PROTECTION
Report of the Director of Markets and Consumer Protection.
For Information
(Pages 37 - 42)

RISK MANAGEMENT
Report of the Director of Markets and Consumer Protection.
For Information
(Pages 43 - 50)

SUPERINTENDENTS' UPDATES
The Superintendents to be heard.
For Information

SMITHFIELD MARKET - CONDENSER WATER COOLING SYSTEM - UPDATE
Report of the City Surveyor.
For Information
(Pages 51 - 54)

NORTH - SOUTH CYCLE SUPERHIGHWAY PHASE 2
Report of the Director of the Built Environment.
For Information
(Pages 55 - 110)
QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

MOTION - That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part | of
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

Part 2 - Non-Public Agenda

NON-PUBLIC MINUTES
To agree the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 20 September 2017.
For Decision
(Pages 111 - 114)

STRATEGIC MARKETS REVIEW
Oral presentation from GVA.
For Information

MUSEUM OF LONDON RELOCATION - PROJECT UPDATE
Report of the Town Clerk.

Resolution of the Policy and Resources Committee. TO FOLLOW
For Information
(Pages 115 - 148)

POULTRY MARKET, MAJOR REPAIRS
Report of the City Surveyor. TO FOLLOW
For Decision

MARKETS DEBT ARREARS - PERIOD ENDING 30TH SEPTEMBER 2017
Report of the Director of Markets and Consumer Protection.
For Information
(Pages 149 - 158)

ANNUAL WAIVERS REPORT 2016/17
Report of the Chamberlain.
For Information
(Pages 159 - 168)

NON PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE
COMMITTEE

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND
WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

MARKETS COMMITTEE
Wednesday, 20 September 2017

Minutes of the meeting of the Markets Committee held at Committee Rooms, 2nd
Floor, West Wing, Guildhall on Wednesday, 20 September 2017 at 11.30 am

Present

Members:

John Scott (Deputy Chairman), in the Chair Deputy Edward Lord

Rehana Ameer Alderman Professor Michael Mainelli
Adrian Bastow Andrew Mayer

Matthew Bell Deputy Robert Merrett

Peter Bennett Deputy Brian Mooney

John Chapman Deputy Joyce Nash

Sophie Anne Fernandes Stephen Quilter

John Fletcher Ruby Sayed

Angus Knowles-Cutler lan Seaton

Gregory Lawrence Deputy Dr Giles Shilson

Officers:

Greg Moore - Town Clerk's Department

Martin Newton - Town Clerk's Department

Julie Zhu - Media Officer

Debbie Howard - Chamberlain’s Department

John Hunt - Comptroller and City Solicitor's Department
Kirpal Kaur - Comptroller and City Solicitor's Department
Andrew Crafter - City Surveyor’s Department

Mark Lowman - City Surveyor’s Department

Steven Chandler - City Surveyor’s Department

David Smith - Director of Markets and Consumer Protection
Julie Gibbs - Markets and Consumer Protection Department
Malcolm Macleod - Superintendent, Billingsgate Market

Ben Milligan - Superintendent, New Spitalfields Market
Mark Sherlock - Superintendent, Smithfield Market

1. APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were received from James Tumbridge (Chairman),
Nicholas Benstead-Smith, Tim Levene, Andrien Meyers and Deputy John
Tomlinson.

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN

RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA
There were no declarations.

Page 1



PUBLIC MINUTES

RESOLVED - That the public minutes of the meeting held on 19 July 2017 be
approved as a correct record, subject to it being noted that the Chief
Commoner had sent apologies for being unable to attend.

BUSINESS PLAN UPDATE

The Committee received a report of the Director of Markets and Consumer
Protection providing an update on progress for Period 1 2017/18 (April to July)
against key performance indicators and objectives outlined in the Markets’
Business Plan.

In response to a question, the Superintendent of Billingsgate Market said that
the high turnover of car park customers at that location was attributable to less
secure employment in the Canary Wharf area. It was noted that the current
budget shortfall was expected to be addressed and that suitable advertising of
available space took place.

A Member then raised the question of the requirement for a cardboard waste
compactor at Smithfield Market and the Market Superintendent confirmed that
this was being investigated.

A Member queried the absence of commercial letting income, particularly with
reference to office space at the Markets, from the financial information provided
in the report. The Chamberlain clarified that responsibility for lettings rested
with the City Surveyor and therefore such income was not reflected in this part
of the report.

In response to a query, the Director of Markets and Consumer Protection
confirmed that the overall sickness absence level of no more than six days per
person by March 2018 was a corporate target.

RECEIVED.

MARKETS COMMITTEE RISK UPDATE
The Committee received a report of the Director of Markets and Consumer
Protection on Markets Committee Risk.

RECEIVED.

CHRISTMAS 2017 - SMITHFIELD MARKET TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT PLAN
The Committee received a report of the Superintendent of Smithfield Market on
the Traffic Management Plan for the Market for Christmas 2017.

The Superintendent of Smithfield Market confirmed to Members that a reduced
level of expenditure (£15,977 instead of £21,527) was now required for the
associated costs of the proposals. It was also noted that the Traffic
Management Plan would commence at 2300 Thursday 14 December to 0800
Friday 22 December.

RESOLVED - That approval be given to:-

Page 2



o the Traffic Management Plan attached to the report, subject to the Plan
commencing at 2300 Thursday 14 December to 0800 Friday 22
December; and

o £15,977 funding from the Smithfield Central Risk budget for the additional
traffic control measures, such as the appointment of private stewards,
outlined in the report.

SUPERINTENDENTS' UPDATES
The Committee received oral updates from each of the Market
Superintendents, as follows:

Smithfield Market

8. Safety Management / Banksmen - The Superintendent reported that the
red risk would remain in place following a further four-night investigation of
103 movements that had indicated 8% risk. Freight transport companies
would be reminded of measures required to comply with approved
standards and potential penalties should they fail to do so.

9. Crossrail - It was noted that the pavement proposals at Farringdon were
likely to have a significant impact on HGV manoeuvrability. These concerns
would be made clear to the Department of the Built Environment.

10.Sickness Absence - Members were updated on recent long-term sickness
absences. The Superintendent advised that this totalled 88 days across 3
individuals. One person had subsequently left the Corporation’s
employment and the remaining two have returned to work with no further
absence. The Superintendent said that he was not anticipating any further
problems in respect of long-term absences.

New Spitalfields Market

e Entry Barrier - The Superintendent said that a further meeting had been
held with Waltham Forest Borough Council. A certificate of lawfulness had
been applied for but planning permission was required as the proposals are
considered a change of use in planning terms. It was noted that this had
changed the way that the barrier would be procured, with a two-stage
design and build procurement plan required. A design had been produced
and it was envisaged that, following planning consent, the barrier should be
in place by the end of March 2018, subject to the consent of appropriate
approvals.

e Flytipping - Members were informed that publicity had been given to
measures to reduce flytipping and that this had been successful in the run-
up to the waste contract coming into force in early October.

e Leases - It was confirmed by the Superintendent that there had been good
progress in this area with many leases signed or about to be signed and
that the Market was now starting to recoup backdated rents.

Billingsgate Market

e Fish Craft Championships - The Superintendent reported that the
prestigious Fish Craft Championships had taken place at Billingsgate at the
end of August and had been very successful. The organisers were looking
at other potential London venues in the future, including the possibility of

Page 3



10.

11.

Leadenhall Market, although there was a possibility the event might be held
again at Billingsgate.

e Grant Funding - It was noted that a waste compactor had been purchased
at a cost to the Market of only £5,000, as a consequence of 75% grant
funding being made available through European Union grant schemes. The
intention was to bid for similar funding for other schemes, such as replacing
the floodlighting with LED lights, which would qualify.

e Crossrail - Members were informed by the Market Superintendent that
Crossrail construction works near to the Market had finished with
reinstatement works now taking place.

e HSBC Window - The Superintendent confirmed that he would follow up the
HSBC window incident that had occurred earlier in the year.

RECEIVED.

SMITHFIELD MARKET - CONDENSER WATER COOLING SYSTEM -
UPDATE

The Committee received a report of the City Surveyor bringing Members up to
date with recent developments on Smithfield Market’'s condenser water cooling
system.

A Member raised the question of testing the pumps on full power. The City
Surveyor confirmed that the size of the pumps was limited by existing pipework
and the need to avoid over-pressurising the system, possibly causing leaks or
fractures. The future replacement of pipework would alleviate these issues.
This is under consideration, and it was noted would be subject to the Gateway
process.

The issue of dirt contamination in the system was also raised by Members, with
it noted that this issue was recognised by officers and that investigations were
continuing to determine the cause and address issues.

RECEIVED.

QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE
COMMITTEE
There were no questions.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT
There were no urgent items.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED - That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in Paragraphs 1, 3, 5 and 7 of Part | of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act as follows:-

Page 4



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

NON-PUBLIC MINUTES
RESOLVED - That the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 19 July be
approved as a correct record.

ADVERTISING HOARDINGS, BILLINGSGATE MARKET
The Committee considered and approved a report of the City Surveyor
regarding advertising hoardings at Billingsgate Market.

CONCESSIONARY PARKING AT SMITHFIELD MARKET DURING THE
CHRISTMAS PERIOD 2017

The Committee considered and approved a report of the Superintendent of
Smithfield Market regarding concessionary parking at the market in the
Christmas period 2017.

DEBT ARREARS
The Committee received a report of the Director of Markets and Consumer
Protection on markets’ debt arrears for the period ending 30 June 2017.

TENANCIES AT WILL AND ASSIGNMENTS
The Committee received a report of the Director of Markets and Consumer
Protection regarding tenancies at will and assignments.

POULTRY MARKET MAJOR REPAIRS PROJECT

The report of the City Surveyor on the major repairs project for the Poultry
Market was withdrawn from the agenda to be considered by the Reference
Sub-Committee at a later date (all Members of the Markets Committee to be
invited at attend).

STRATEGIC MARKETS REVIEW
The Committee received a report of the Director of Markets and Consumer
Protection on the Strategic Markets Review.

NON PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF
THE COMMITTEE
There were no questions.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT
AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

The Committee considered an urgent item relating to design costs of the entry
barrier for the New Spitalfields Market.

The meeting ended at 12.15 pm

Chairman

Page 5



Contact Officer: Martin Newton
tel. no.: 020 7332 3514
martin.newton@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 6



Agenda Item 4

Committee(s): Dated:

Markets 29 November 2017
Subject: Public

Revenue and Capital Budgets - 2017/18 and

2018/19

Report of: For Decision

The Chamberlain
Director of Markets and Consumer Protection

Report Author:
Debbie Howard, Chamberlain’s Department

Summary

This report is the annual submission of the revenue and capital budgets overseen
by your Committee. It seeks approval to the latest revenue budget for 2017/18 and
provisional revenue budget for 2018/19, for subsequent submission to the Finance
Committee. Details of the Committee’s draft capital budget are also provided. The
budgets have been prepared within the resources allocated to the Director,
including a 2% reduction for efficiency savings.

Business priorities for the forthcoming year will include:

e Focus on maintaining the high quality of service within cash limited resource
allocation. As all the Markets have service charges, consultation with the
respective Tenants' Associations on the level of services and their costs will
be important to demonstrate value for money, whilst still ensuring that the
City's responsibilities as landlord and property owner are protected.

e Concluding the Strategic Review of Markets and gaining Committee and
Court approval of its recommendation.

e Assisting the City Surveyor in completing the Smithfield Poultry Market
project.

e Improving the state of the infrastructure and cleaning standards at
Billingsgate.

e Installing an Entry Barrier system at New Spitalfields Market to improve
control and generate income.

e Working with the City Surveyor and the Museum of London on the project to
relocate the Museum of London.

e Improving risk management generally and, specifically, continuing to reduce
health and safety risks at the markets and minimising accidents.

Page 7



Table 1 Summary Revenue Budgets 2017-18 and 2018-19

Latest Movement
o Movement o o
Original | Budget for L Original Original
Original 2017+
Budget approval Budget 2017-18 to
18 to LAB L.
2017/18 (LAB) 2018/19 Original
2017-18
2017/18 2018-19
£'000 (A) | £000 (B) | £000 (A-B) | £000 (C) | £000 (A-C)
Expenditure (16,076) (15,421) 655 (16,030) 46
Income 18,686 18,487 (199) 20,500 1,814
Net Surplus/(Deficit) 2,610 3,066 456 4,470 1,860
Support Services and
_ (2,380) (2,340) 40 (2,250) 130
Capital Charges
Total Net Expenditure 230 726 496 2,220 1,990

Overall, the 2017/18 latest budget shows a net surplus of £726,000, an
increase in net surplus of £496,000 compared to the original budget of
£230,000. The main reasons for this saving are listed below:-

e Reductions to phasing of City Surveyors Additional Works Programme

£614,000.

e Reduction in premises related expenses £533,000.

e Reduced transfers to reserves £76,000.

e Reduction of Capital and support costs £40,000.

The reductions are partially offset by the following:-

e Employment cost increases of £102,000.

e Increases in supplies and services of £371,000.

¢ Increased waste and cleaning of £95,000.
e Reduction of income, £199,000.

The 2018/19 provisional revenue budget shows a net surplus of £2,220,000, an
increase in net surplus of £1,990,000 compared with the original budget for
2017/18 of £230,000. The main reasons for this saving are listed below:-

¢ Reductions to phasing of City Surveyors Additional Works Programme,

£594,000.

e Areduction in premises related expenses, £92,000.

e Reduction in transfers, £76,000.

¢ Reduction of Capital and support cost £130,000.

e |ncreased income, £1,814,000.

The reductions are partially offset by the following:

e Employment cost increases of £244,000.

e Increased transport costs, £17,000.

Page 8




e Increased supplies and services, waste contract £455,000.
Full detailed reasons for the variances are listed in the main body of the report.

Recommendations
The Committee is requested to:-

e Review the latest 2017/18 revenue budget to ensure it reflects the
Committee’s objectives and, if so, approve the budget. Review the
provisional 2018/19 revenue budget to ensure it reflects the Committee’s
objectives and, if so, approve the budget for submission to the Finance
Committee.

e Review and approve the draft capital budget.

e Members are asked to note the Building Repairs and Maintenance asset
verification exercise being undertaken by the City Surveyor and agree that
any minor changes for 2017/18 latest and 2018/19 original budgets arising
from this exercise be delegated to the Chamberlain.

Main Report

Background

1. The City of London Corporation owns and manages Billingsgate Market (fish) in
Docklands, Smithfield Market (meat) in the City and Spitalfields Market (fruit,
vegetables and flowers) in Leyton. Smithfield and Billingsgate Markets are funded
from City's Cash and Spitalfields Market is funded from City Fund.

2. This report sets out the proposed latest revenue budget and capital budgets for
2017/18 and the proposed revenue budgets and capital budgets for 2018/19. The
revenue budget management arrangements are to:

e Provide a clear distinction between local and central risk and recharge budgets.
e Place responsibility for budgetary control on departmental Chief Officers.
e Apply a cash limit policy to Chief Officers’ budgets.
¢ Provide information regarding the service based review proposals.
3. The latest budget for 2017/18 and the proposed revenue budget for 2018/19 has been
analysed by service expenditure and compared with the original budget for 2017/18.

The budgets are further analysed between:

e Local risk budgets — these are deemed to be largely within the Chief Officer's
control.

e Central Risk budgets — these are budgets comprising specific items where the
Chief Officer manages the underlying service, but where the eventual financial
outturn can be strongly influenced by external factors outside his/her control or
are budgets of a corporate nature (e.g. interest on balances and rent from
properties).

Page 9



e Support Services and Capital Charges — these cover budgets for activities
provided by one service to another. The control of costs on these budgets is
exercised at the point where the cost or income first arises as a local or central
risk cost (e.g. Surveyors employee recharge).

4. The report also compares the current year’s budget with the forecast outturn.

5. In the various tables, expenditure and adverse variances are presented in brackets.
Significant variances (generally those greater than £50,000) are commented on but in
accordance with this Committees request, all adverse variances are commented on.

Business Planning Priorities

6. Business priorities for 2018/19 will focus on maintaining the high quality of service
within cash limited resource allocation. As all the Markets have service charges,
consultation with the respective Tenants' Associations on the level of services and
their costs will be important to demonstrate value for money, whilst still ensuring that
the City's responsibilities as landlord and property owner are protected.

7. Other priorities will include:

Concluding the Strategic Review of Markets and gaining Committee and Court
approval of its recommendation.

From efficiency measures where possible, to seek opportunities for increasing
revenue from new or existing income streams.

Improving risk management generally and, specifically, continuing to reduce
health and safety risks at the markets and minimising accidents.

Assisting the City Surveyor in completing the Smithfield Poultry Market project.
Improving the state of the infrastructure and cleaning standards at Billingsgate.

Installing an Entry Barrier system at New Spitalfields Market to improve control
and generate income.

Working with the City Surveyor and the Museum of London on the project to
relocate the Museum of London.

Providing leadership and management training for our middle managers.

Developing a workforce plan which ensures that our workforce has both the
capability and resources to meet the business objectives.

8. Projects.

The Smithfield Poultry Market roof repairs and electrical re-wiring project will be
progressed as rapidly as possible by the City Surveyor and industry.

Following consultation with the London Fish Merchants’ Association (LFMA) and
individual tenants, the Additional Facilities and Phase 2 of the Re-Roofing Projects
at Billingsgate Market will remain ‘on hold’ but further discussions are underway
with the LFMA to agree affordable improvements in the Market'’s infrastructure.

Page 10



e The Spitalfields Entry Barrier Project has been initiated and will be progressed
through the Gateways and Planning Permission from LB Waltham Forest, with the
intention to complete it within 2018/19. It is being funded by the Markets Repairs
and Repainting Fund and requires no City funding.

Latest Revenue Budget for 2017/18

9. Overall there is an increase in net surplus between the Committee’s original and latest
budget for 2017/18 of £496,000. Table 1A and the paragraphs below summarise the
movements between the original and latest budgets comprising this saving. A further
analysis of local and central risk budgets by service is provided at Appendix 1A.

Expenditure

10. An increase in employment costs of £102,000 due to pay award of 1.5% and
increases in pension and National Insurance costs.

11. A decrease of £559,000 for local risk premises related costs is due to:
¢ New Spitalfields Market - Reduction of £280,000 due to:

o An increase in cleaning costs of £53,000 for the new Servest cleaning contract
commencing in October 2017.

o An increase in water costs of £44,000.

o A reduction in minor improvement works due to re-phasing of work of £377,000
funded from the Repair and Repainting fund.

e Billingsgate Market - Reduction of £224,000 is due to:

o A reduction of contribution expected from the tenants to the Market reserves
fund of £150,000.

o Revised energy budget due to new contract from October 2017, resulting in a
reduction in electricity charges of £42,000.

o Reduction in general breakdown and contract servicing budgets of £56,000.

o Increased costs for rates due to revaluation of £19,000 and pest control and
cleaning materials of £5,000.

e Smithfield Market - Reduction of £55,000 is due to:

o Reduction in electricity of £195,000 due to better information of consumption
and price.

o An increase of Citigen energy/water costs of £34,000.

o Increase in business rates of £83,000 for the main market and £23,000 for the
Rotunda Car Park.

Page 11



12. Increase of £26,000 for central risk premises related costs is due to a rate increase of
£30,000 at Billingsgate Market offset by small reductions across several categories of
£4,000.

13. Decrease of £614,000 is due to re-phasing of the Additional Works Programme,
£688,000 at Smithfield Market which is offset by increases in the planned building,
repair and maintenance works at all markets of £74,000 as detailed in Table 2A.

14. Increase in local risk supplies and services of £149,000 is due to a carry forward of
£137,000 for the Strategic Review consultation and an increase in uniforms at
Billingsgate due to the purchase of stab vests of £6,000 and other minor increases
over several categories of £6,000.

15. Increase in central risk supplies and services of £222,000 due to:

e An increase at Smithfield Market professional fees for the rent negotiations of
£100,000 and an increase of £2,000 for the Crossrail compensation
negotiations. Christmas traffic security and signage of £16,000 and installation
of electric boards in the Commercial Office common areas of £5,000.

e An increase for professional fees for the negotiations of the advertising
hoarding at Billingsgate Market of £10,000.

¢ An increase of £90,000 which was agreed as a central risk carry forward for
the continuation of the lease negotiations at Spitalfields Market offset by a
reduction of £1,000 for inspection costs.

16. Increase in local risk waste and cleaning contract of £95,000 at New Spitalfields
Market is due to the retendered waste contract won by Countrystyle and the newly
implemented corporate office cleaning contract by Servest starting in October 2017.

17. A transfer of £76,000 to the Billingsgate Market repainting and special works fund will
be reduced due to a reduced service charge contribution.

Income

18. Decrease in total income between the original 2017/18 and latest proposed 2017/18
budget totals £199,000. Main variances include:

19. Reductions in local risk income of £422,000 due to:

e Reduced service charge income of £134,000 due to a reduction for repairs,
reduced car parking income of £50,000 at Billingsgate Market, offset by receipt of a
non- government grant of £16,000 for equipment purchased and an increase of
market reserve transfers of £58,000.

e Reduced income transfer from Spitalfields Market reserves of £377,000 due to
reduction in repair costs. This is offset by additional net income to fund increased
costs £65,000.

20. The central risk income has increased by £223,000 due to increased rent due at
Spitalfields Market £215,000, Billingsgate Market of £56,000 and Smithfield other
properties of £85,000, plus a net increase across Spitalfields and Billingsgate of
£12,000 for increases in service charge income, which is netted off against reductions

Page 12



in advertising hoarding income of £125,000 and £20,000 for transfers from reserves
at Billingsgate Market.

Support Services and Capital Charges

21. A detailed breakdown of support services and capital charges can be seen at
Appendix 2. The decrease of £40,000 between 2017/18 original budget and 2017/18
latest budget is mainly due to decreases in Capital Charges.

Building Repairs and Maintenance (BRM)

22. Members should note the basis on which repairs and maintenance budgets have
been prepared for the latest estimates for 2017/18 include a part year charge from the
former repairs and maintenance contractor (MITIE) and 9 months from the new
contractor (Skanska), whereas the original 2018/19 budgets are based on the
tendered return of the new contractor.

23. Under the terms of the BRM contract, Skanska are undertaking an asset verification
exercise which is expected to be completed in February 2018, the outcome of the
review is likely to result in variations to the figures that have been submitted for
2017/18 latest and 2018/19 original budgets.

24. Committees are requested to acknowledge this potential change and allow the

Chamberlain (in consultation with the City Surveyor) to make the necessary budget
adjustments within overall approval, following the asset verification.

Page 13



TABLE 1A - MARKETS COMMITTEE SUMMARY - ALL FURNDS OR 2017/18 - LAB 2017/18

Latest |Movement
Local Original |Budgetfor| Original
) . ] Actual Paragraph
Analysis of Service Expenditure or Budget | approval [2017/18to
2016/17 Reference
Central 2017/18 {LAE) LAB
Risk 2017/18 | 2017/18
£000 £000 £000 £000
EXFEMDITURE
Employees L (5.238) (5.600) (5.702) (102) 10
Premises Related Expenses (3ee note 1) L (4222 (2.012) (4.423) 559 11
Premises Related Expenses (3ee note i) c 234 (118) (144) (26) 12
City Surveyer - Repairs & Maintenance L (877 (2.249) (1.635) 614 13
Tranzpert Related Expenzes L (73] (60) (607 0
Supplies & Services (see note il L (25 (268) (1.117) (14%) 14
Supplies & Services (see nots iv) c (48) (93) (315) (222) 15
Waste & Cleaning Contract at Mew Spitalfields
L {1.821) {1.800) (1.883) (23) 16
Market
Capital Charges L 0 0 0 O
Transfer to Reserves L (128) (78) 0 76 17
Transter to Service Charge Reseves C 0 0 0 0
Tetal Expenditurs (13.3085) (16.076) (15.421) 633
IMNCOME
Other Grants, Reimbursements and Contribution L 374 373 289 (24) 19
Other Grants, Reimbursements and Contribution c 0 0 0 o
Customer, Client Receipts (322 note v) L 10731 11321 11,288 (35) 19
Customer, Client Receipts (3ee note v) C 3,767 1,510 1414 (96) 20
Customer, Client Receipts (Rent) C 2884 4768 3,107 339 20
Investment Income L B 3 19 16 18
Investment Income C 0 0 0 0
Transfer from Service Charge Reserves L 147 661 342 (319) 19
Transfer from Service Charge Resernves C 30 0 30 (20 20
Tetal Income 18,059 15,636 18,487 (199)
TOTAL EXPEMDITURE/ (INCOME) BEFORE
_ 4734 2,610 3.066 436
SUPPORT SERVICES AMD CAPITAL CHARGES
SUPPORT SERVICES AMD CAPITAL CHARGES
Central Suppert Services and Capital Charges (2.633) (2.770) (2.731) 38 21
Recharges within Committees 0 O 0 o
Recharges within Fund 77 77 77 0
Recharges Across Funds 307 313 314 1 21
Tetal Suppert Services and Capital Charges (2,269) (2.380) (2,340 40
TOTAL MET EXPEMNDITURE/(INCOME) . 2.485 230 728 A85
rFrayc 14




Notes - Examples of types of service expenditure: -

(i) Premises Related Expenses, Local Risk (L) — includes repairs & maintenance, energy costs, rates, water services,
cleaning and domestic supplies

(ii) Premises Related Expenses, Central Risk (C) — estimated car park rates liability at Billingsgate Market

(iii) Supplies and Services, Local Risk (L) — Equipment, furniture, materials, uniforms, printing, stationary, professional fees,
grants & subscriptions

(iv) Supplies and Services, Central Risk (C) — actual includes legal fees for Smithfield Market, current year estimates include
rates and professional fees for Billingsgate.

(v) Customer, Client Receipts Local risk (L) — service charge and car parking income and reimbursements for electricity and
water

Proposed Revenue Budget for 2018/19

25. The provisional 2018/19 budgets being presented to your Committee and under the
control of the Director of Markets and Consumer Protection have been prepared in
accordance with the guidelines agreed by the Policy and Resources and Finance
Committees. These include 1.5% cash limit allowance for pay increases and a 2%
reduction for efficiency savings in base budgets. The budget has been prepared
within the resources allocated to the Director.

26. Overall there is an increase in net surplus of £1,990,000 compared with the original
budget for 2017/18 of £230,000 between the Committee’s 2017/18 and 2018/19
original budgets. Table 1B and the paragraphs below summarise the movements
comprising this reduction. A further analysis of the local and central revenue budgets
by service is provided in Appendix 1B.

Expenditure

27. Increase in employment costs of £244,000 is due to an uplift of 1.5% for cost of living
increase and incremental increases together with increases in pension contributions
and National Insurance.

28. Decrease of £121,000 for premises related costs is due to:

e Decrease in repair and maintenance of £372,000 at New Spitalfields Market,
netted off against increased costs for the new office cleaning contract with
Servest of £47,000, increased energy and water charges of £59,000.

e Decrease in energy costs of £30,000 and £50,000 for contribution to market
reserves due to reduced repair and maintenance cyclical works for Billingsgate
Market. This is netted off against an increase in rates of £21,000, cleaning and
pest control materials of £10,000 and general repairs of £26,000.

e Increased business rates for Smithfield Market and the car park £80,000, HV
tanking of plant £74,000 in the East Market, £64,000 to complete installation of
electric meters, Citigen heating and cooling increases of £54,000 and signage
£11,000. This is netted off against a reduction in electric of £115,000 due to
revision of consumption and price.

29. An increase in premises related expenditure on the central risk of £229,000 is due to
rates increase at Billingsgate Market for the car park of £28,000 and the cost of

Page 15



services for the vacant premises within the Poultry Market payable by the Landlord
under the 2013 lease agreement of £201,000.

30. Decrease of £594,000 detailed on table 2B is due to re-phasing of City Surveyors
repairs of £631,000 at Smithfield Market and increases in reactive and planned works
at all markets £37,000.

31. Increased transport costs of £17,000 due to the purchase of a sit on scrubber-dryer
vehicle for Smithfield Market.

32. Increased local risk supplies and services of £54,000 due to:

e An increase in publicity costs to improve social media presence of £20,000,
netted against reductions of £11,000 for computer maintenance, licenses, legal
fees and cash collection.

e Increases at Smithfield Market for a jet wash machine £6,000, Christmas traffic
management £16,000, 4% contractual increase for refuse collection, £24,000.

e A netreduction over several categories of £1,000.
33. The £1,000 increase in costs is due to Inspection costs at Smithfield Market.

34. Increased costs for the waste, recycling and cleaning contract tendered by
Countrystyle at New Spitalfields Market has increased the fixed price of the contract
by £200,000.

35. The decrease of transfers to the markets reserve accounts at Billingsgate Market of
£76,000 is due to an increase in repairs and equipment and a reduction in
contribution from the service charge, resulting in less funds transferred to the
reserves.

Income

36. An increase in total income between the original 2017/18 and latest proposed
2018/19 budget totals £1,814,000 as follows:

37. Decrease of £223,000 is due to reduced contributions payable by the tenants at
Billingsgate Market of £50,000 and reduction of £173,000 at Smithfield Market for
direct recoverable rates which will be recoverable via the service charge from 2018-
19 as per the terms of the lease agreement.

38. Increase for local risk client receipts of £1,461,000 is due to:

e Increased income generated due to recovering all cost of services from the
market trading tenants at Smithfield Market due to the capped agreement
ceasing from 01/04/2018 of £1,018,000.

e |Increase in car park charges of £33,000, additional reimbursement from

Commercial Office tenants of £36,000 for the HV tanking netted against a
reduction for electricity costs reimbursement of £20,000 at Smithfield Market.

Page 16



e Recoverable service charge income has increased £58,000 to compensate for
net increases in employment, water and materials and filming income has
increased by £6,000 at Billingsgate Markets.

e Admission charging into New Spitalfields Market will generate £400,000
additional income which will be netted off against the car parking income which
will no longer be charged of £70,000. The income is for the benefit of the
service charge.

39. Increase for central risk income of £864,000 due to:

e Increase in Service Charge reimbursement income which will fund recharged
costs and Building, Repair and Maintenance (BRM) costs, £790,000 at
Smithfield Market.

e Increased Service Charge reimbursements for recharges and BRM costs of
£74,000 for all markets.

40. Increase of rental income at Billingsgate £62,000 and Smithfield Other properties of
£35,000.

41. Decrease in transfers of £385,000 from the market reserves for local and central risk
costs due to lower costs of repairs and projects which are no longer required to be
funded by the contributions to the service charge for Billingsgate and New Spitalfields
Markets.

Support Services and Capital Charges

42. The net decrease of £130,000 between 2017/18 and 2018/19 original budgets is due
to decreases in insurance and capital charges. A detailed breakdown can be seen at
Appendix 2.

Page 17



TABLE 1B - MARKETS COMMITTEE SUMMARY - ALL FUNDS OR 2017/18 1o OR 2018/18

Lacal Original | Original |Movement
. . . Actual Paragraph
Analysis of Service Expenditure or Budget | Budget |2017/181t0
2016/17 Reference
Central 2017/18 | 2018/19 | 2018/19
Risk £000 £000 £000 £000
EXPENDITURE
Employees L (2.238) (5.600) (5.844) (244) 27
Premizses Related Expenses (328 note ) L (4.222) (3,012) (4,881) 121 28
Premises Related Expenses (see note ii) C 234 (118) (347) (229) 20
City Surveyor - Repairs & Maintenance L (277) (2,248) (1,655) S84 30
Transport Related Expenses L (73) (60) (77) (17) al
Supplies & Services (see note iil) L (95 (968) (1,022) (24) 32
Supplies & Services (3ee note iv) C (48) (93) (94) (1) 33
Waate & Lleaning Contract at New Spitalelds
L (1,921) (1,900 (2.100) (200) 4
Markst
Transfer to Resemes L (128) (7€) 0 76 39
Total Expenditure (13305)| (16078)  (16.030) 48
INCOME
Other Grants, Reimbursements and Contrbution | L 374 373 130 (223) 37
Other Grants, Reimbursements and Centribution | C 0 0 0 0
Customer, Client Receipts (see note v) L 10751 11321 12782 1461 8
Customer, Client Receipts (see note v) C 3767 1510 2374 B64| 39
Customer, Client Receipts (Rent) C 2954 4763 4,865 a7 40
Investment Income L f 3 3 0
Transfer from Service Charge Rezerves L 147 661 295 (366)] 41
Transfer from Service Charge Reserves C a0 20 al (19| 41
Total Income 18,008 18,636 20500 1814 36
TOTAL EXPENDITURE/ INCOME) BEFORE
) 4754 2,610 4470 1,860
SUPPORT SERVICES AND CAPITAL CHARGES
SUPPORT SERVICES AND CAPITAL CHARGES
Central Support Services and Capital Charges (2.653) (2.770) (2,633) 135
Recharges within Committees 0 0 0
Recharges within Fund 7 17 77 0
Recharges Across Funds 307 313 308 (3)
Total Support Services and Capital Charges (2.2689) (2.380) (2.230) 130 42
TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE/(INCOME) 2483 230 2220 1880

Page 18




City Surveyors Local Risk

43. The decrease of £614,000 between original and latest budget for 2017/18 for the City
Surveyor’s repairs and maintenance programme reflects changes in the composition

44.

and phasing of the works as outlined in Table 2A below

TABLE 2A - CITY SURVEYOR LOCAL RISK OR 2017/18 - LAB 2017/18
. Latest
Original
Budget for
Budget Movement
Approval
2017718
2017718
Repairs and Maintenance £'000 £'000 £'000
Additional Works Programme (1,521) (833) 688
Planned, Re-active & Cyclical Works
Billingsgate (171) (178) ()
Smithfield (476) (533) (57)
Spitalfields (81) (91) (10)
Total City Surveyor (2.249) (1.635) 614

The decrease of £594,000 between original 2017/18 and original 2018/19 budget for
the City Surveyor’s repairs and maintenance programme reflects changes in the
composition and phasing of the works as outlined in Table 2B below

TABLE 2B - CITY SURVEYOR LOCAL RISK OR 2017/18 - OR2018/19
Original | Original
Budget Budget |Movement
2017/18 | 2018/19
Repairs and Maintenance £'000 £'000 £'000
Additional Works Programme (1,521) (890) 631
Planned, Re-active & Cyclical Works
Billingsgate (171) (184) (13)
Smithfield (476) (490) (14)
Spitalfields (81) (91) (10)
Total City Surveyor (2.249) (1.655) 594

Page 19




45. Budgets have provisionally been included for the 2018/19 additional works
programme based on bids considered by the Corporate Asset Sub (Finance)
Committee in June 2017. However, a decision on funding of the programme is not
due to be made by the Resource Allocation Sub (Policy and Resources) Committee
until December 2018. It may therefore be necessary to adjust budgets to reflect the
Resource Allocation Sub (Policy and Resources) Committee’s decision.

46. The main elements for the decrease in the additional works programme 2018/19,
which is for Smithfield Market only, is that the value of work identified in the City
Surveyor’s 20-year programme for the latest budget for 2017/18 and 2018/19 has
been re-phased in comparison with the combined value of various programmes in the
original estimate for 2017/18.

47. The planned and reactive works contract has been awarded to Skanska who are
carrying out an extensive asset review at the markets. It may therefore be necessary
to adjust budgets to reflect possible increases or decreases in planned works for all
markets.

Manpower Statement

48. Analysis of the movement in manpower and related staff costs are shown in Table 3.

Table 3 - Manpower statement OR 2017/18 - OR 2018/19
Original Budget 2017/18|Original Budget 2018/19
Manpower . Manpower .
. Estimated . Estimated
Full-time Full-time
. cost . cost
Equivalent Equivalent
£'000 £'000
Directorate 5.4 (433) 5.4 (449)
Spitalfields Market 34.0 (1.562) 34.0 (1.610)
Smithfield Market 46.0 (1.860) 45.0 (1.985)
Billingsgate Market 38.5 (1.745) 38.5 (1.800)
TOTAL MARKETS 123.9 (5.600) 123.9 (5.844)

Potential Further Budget Developments

49. The provisional nature of the 2018/19 revenue budget recognises that further
revisions may be required, particularly relation to:

e Decisions on funding of the Additional Work Programme by the Resource
Allocation Sub (Policy and Resources) Committee

e Capital and depreciation charges, central and department recharges, which
have not yet been finalised for the forthcoming year.

Forecast Outturn 2017/18

50. The forecast outturn for the current year is above the latest approved budget by
approximately £160,000. This is due mainly to reduced service charge income as a

Page 20



result of delaying the additional lettings at the Poultry Market. The Director of
Markets and Consumer Protection will review all options within his overall resources
for Markets and Consumer Protection to stay within his allocation for Markets
Committee services by year end.

Members Format — Operating Summary

51. Members have, in the past, expressed interest in the financial performance of
individual Wholesale Markets (i.e. excluding the car park and outside properties at
Smithfield). This is set out in Appendix 3.

52. There is an overall surplus to the City of London Corporation for operating the
Markets of £2,251,000 in 2018/19. The surplus is higher than the overall Committee
total of £2,220,000, as the excluded items produced a net cost of £31,000. The
overall Market surplus for 2018/19 includes costs for capital charges and
depreciation totalling £905,000.

53. Appendix 4a and 4b details the reasons for all adverse variances and favourable
variances over £50,000.

Draft Capital Depreciation Budget

54. The City of London Corporation has adopted the Generally Accepted Accounting
Practices UK (GAAP UK) which has resulted in the notional capital costs at
Spitalfields Market, Smithfield Market and Billingsgate Market being written down and
depreciation of the building and plant being charged to the revenue account. The
charges for 2018/19 are:

Table 4 - Annual Capital Depreciation Charges
Market £
Spitalfields (689)
Billingsgate (117)
Smithfield (99)
Total (905)

Draft Capital and Supplementary Revenue Budgets

55. The latest estimated costs for the Committee’s draft capital and supplementary
revenue projects are summarised in the Table below.

Page 21



Ex Pre
Later
Service Managed Project 01/04/2017 | 2017-18 | 2018-19 | Years Total
£'000 £'000 £°000 £°000 £°000
FPre-implementation
Smithfield FPoultry Market
repairs (1.133) (210) (1.343)
Spitalfields Entry Barrier (66) (66)
Total Markets (1.133) (276) (1.409)

56. Pre-implementation costs comprise feasibility and option appraisal expenditure which
has been approved in accordance with the project procedure, prior to authority to start
work. It should be noted that the above figures exclude the implementation costs of
those schemes which have yet to receive authority to start work.

57. Implementation of the Poultry Market Repairs project at Smithfield Market, which is
being funded by the City, is anticipated to commence in 2017/18, subject to authority
to start work.

58. The installation of the barrier at Spitalfields to control access to the site has been
delayed due to the requirement for a full planning application rather than a Certificate
of Lawful Use.

59. The latest Capital and Supplementary Revenue Project budgets will be presented to
the Court of Common Council for formal approval in March 2018.

Contact: Debbie Howard - Senior Accountant,
Chamberlain’s Department

debbie.howard@cityoflondon.gov.uk, Tel: 020 7332 3574

Page 22


mailto:debbie.howard@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Appendix 1A - Analysis by Service Managed OR 2017/18 - LAB 2017/18

Original

Latest Budget for

Mowvement

Actual _ Faragraph
S016/17 Budget appr:val. (LAB) |OR 2[}1?;1.8 | reterence
2017/18 2017/18 LAE 2017/18

£000 £000 £000 £000
CITY FUND
Spitalfields Market
- Service Charge Account (12) (27) (27) 0
- City Account 1,844 1,220 1,292 72
- Repairing and Repairs Fund o o o o
Total Spitalfields Market 1,932 1,193 1,265 72
TOTAL CITY FUND 1932 1,193 1,265 72
CITY'S CASH
Smithfield
Service Charge Account (1,705) (1,586) (1,422) 164
Mon-Service Charge Account 805 (344) (8] 338
Other Services 517 (133) (24) 109
Total Smithfield Market (283) (2,063) (1,452) 611
Billingsgate
Service Charge Account o 0 0 o
Meon-Service Charge Account 836 1,100 813 (187}
Repairin and Special Waorks
Ac:cuntg i 0 ° ° °
Total Billingsgate Market 836 1,100 913 (187)
Markets Directorate 0 0 0 "
TOTAL CITY'S CASH 553 (963) (539) 424
TOTAL 2,485 230 726 496

Page 23




Appendix 1B - Analysis by Service Managed OR 2017718 - OR 2018/19

Original Original Movement
Actual _ Paragraph
016/17 Budget Budget OR 2[}1?;.18- reference
2017718 2018/19 OR 2018/19
£1000 £000 £000 £000
CITY FUND
Spitalfields Market
- Service Charge Account (12} (27 (21) &
- City Account 1,044 1,220 1,204 (16)
- Repairing and Repairs Fund ] 4] 4] 4]
Total Spitalfields Market 1,932 1,193 1,133 (1)
TOTAL CITY FUND 1,932 1,193 1,183 (10}
CITY'S CASH
Smithfield
Service Charge Account {1,705) (1,586) o 1,586
Mon-Service Charge Account 805 (344) (174) 170
Dther Services 517 (133) 55 188
Total Smithfield Market (283) (2,063) (119) 1,044
Billingsgate
Service Charge Account 0 0 0 0
Mon-Service Charge Account 836 1,100 1,156 56
Repairin and Special Works
Ac::untg i ? ? ? 0
Total Billingsgate Market 836 1,100 1,156 56
Markets Directorate 0 0 0
TOTAL CITY'S CASH 553 (963) 1,037 2,000
TOTAL 2,485 230 2,220 1,990

Page 24




Appendix 2 - Support Service and Capital Charges from/to Markets Committee
Latest
Original Budget Original
Actual for
Budget Budget
20168/17 Approval
2017/18 2018/19
(LAB)
2017718
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Support Service and Capital Charges
Administrative Buildings (34) (40) (36) (40)
City Surveyors Employee Recharge (224) (214) (227) (225)
Insurance (502) (523) (517) (489
Liakility Insurance (44) (39) (34) (36)
Film Liaiscn-Legal Fees (B) 4] ] 4]
IS Recharges — Chamberlain (277 (224) (303) (300)
City Procurement Recharges - Chamberlain (32) (61) (35) (54)
Capital Charges (915) (857) (850) (905)
Support Services -
Chamberlain (279) (294) (308) (287)
Comptroller and City Solicitor )] (153) (30) (29)
Town Clerk (150) (168) (195) (190)
City Surveyor (90 (97) (78) (8
Sub-total Support Services and Capital Charges (2,653) (2,770) (2,731) (2,635)
Recharges Within Funds
Corporate and Democratic Core — Finance Commities 77 77 77 77
Recharges Across Funds
Directorate Recharge - Markets — City Fund ] o ] o
Directorate Recharge - Licensing Committee 20 20 20 19
Directorate Recharge — Port Health and Envircnmental
Services Committes 287 2% 284 28
TOTAL SUPPORT SERVICE AND CAPITAL CHARGES (2,269) (2,380) (2,340) (2,250)

The Capital Charges within this Committee total £905,000 in 2018/19. These relate to depreciation charges at
Spitalfields Market £689,000 depreciation at Smithfield Market, the Animal- By- Product facility and the Car Park
£99,000; and depreciation charges at Billingsgate Market £117,000 based on the estimated value as at 1 April 2014
divided by anticipated lives of assets. This is in accordance with the City adopting the UK GAAP accounting.

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



Wholesale Markets Operating Summary

2018-19 Original Estimate APPENDIX 3
Spitalfields Market Billingsgate Market Smithfield Market Total Wholesale Market
nd ' nd ' nd ' nd '
—~ nd x —~ o o —~ o e — o g
4 S = O O x S x O O x S x O O x S x O O
o @) S E 2 ) @ @) S E 2 ) @) S E - ) @) S E )
= 2] 5 Z O = a1 3 (¢ Z O = 2 O Z O = 28] ) Z O
@) < ?E % = ! QO @) < 1 % — ! () @) < 2 % — ! () @) < é-é % = ! Q
g = 3 S 8 5 d 8 = S S 3 5 d g = 3 & 8 5 d g = 3 S g 5 3
(&) (&) (&) (&)
S 8 o g2 2 o g s € ©o° g2 2 T g8 S 8 & g8 2 B gf R 5 g8 | &2 3 g8
m > s QS = m @ c = m - © T = (a8 ® c = m -] s QS = (] @ q = m > @ T = m © q =
s £ |z 5 §§ E 5 58z ¢ = E 3 & §8 s £ 5%« 4| s £ % £ 58§ E £ 5%« 4 | g E 3% : 5 8 E £ 5ic
3 5 8 E oy B g ogg ¢ E 5 I3 g o 9O 5 2 © 90 o E 5 3 g€ o¢a B g © 90 2 E 5 13 g S 5 g © 90
< ® i S 235 6 S &gz 2 < o S S = o S & EZ 2 < o R S 235 6 S & EZ 2 < o i S = o S & EZ
2016-17 2017/18 2017/18 2018/19 2016/17 2017/18 2017/18 2018/19 2016-17 2017-18 2017-18 2018-19 2016-17 2017-18 2017-18 2018-19
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £000 £'000 % £'000 £000 = £000 £'000 % £000 £'000 % £000  £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000 £'000 % £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000 £'000 %
Operating Expenditure
Expenditure
Employees (basic pay, NI, pension, overtime,
training and recruitment advertising) (1,382) (1,562)  (1,560) 2 0% (1,610) (48) -3% 1&19 (1,656) (1,745)! (1,756) (11) -1% | (1,800) (55) -3% 9&25 | (1,782) (1,860) (1,936) (76) 4%/ (1,985) (125) -7% 15&31 (4,820) (5,167) (5,252) (85) 2% (5,395) (228) -4%
Premises (Energy, repair and maintenance, rates,
water, pest control, cleaning materials ) (1,104) (1,758)  (1,478) 280 16% (1,492) 266 15% 2&20 (1,183) (1,240) (1,049) 191 15% (1,259) (19) -2% 10&26| (2,714) (4,003) (3,310) 693 17% (3,785) 218 5% 16&32 (5,001) (7,001) (5,837) 1,164 17% (6,536) 465 8%
Transport (Vehicle running costs, congestion
charge and travel costs) (2) (4) (4) 0 0% (4) 0 0% (40) (52) (52) 0 0% (52) 0 0% (33) (3) (3) 0 0% (20) (17) -567% 33 (75) (59) (59) 0 0% (76) (17) -29%
Supplies and Services (Refuse collection,
Equipment and CCTV hire/maintenance and
purchase, uniforms and clothing, communication
and office expenses) (168) (158) (239) (81) -51% (166) (8) 5% 3 (121) (117) (161) (44) -38% (127) (10) -9% 11827 (367) (424) (543) (119) -28%  (470) (46) -11% 17&34 (656) (699) (943) (244) -35% (763) (64) -7%
Waste, recycling contract (1,921) (1,900) (1,995) (95) 5% (2,100) (200) -11% 4&21 0 0 0% 0 0% 0% (1,921) (1,900)  (1,995) (95) -5% (2,100) (200) -10%
Total operating expenditure (4,577) (5,382) (5,276) 106 5% (5,372) 10 0% (3,000) (3,154) (3,018) 136 4% (3,238) (84) -3% (4,896) (6,290) (5,792) 498 8% (6,260) 30 (12,473) (14,826) (14,086) 740 (14,870) (44)
Income
Rent, Wayleaves and Tolls Income 2,690 2,029 2,244 215 11% 2,031 2 0% 5 928 910 966 56 6% 972 62 7% 12828 1,752 1,729 1,729 0 0% 1,729 0 0% 5370 4,668 4,939 271 34% 4,732 64 13%
Charges for Services (Filming, car parking, service
charge income, insurance,advertising hoarding,
reimbursment if direct recovered costs) 4,706 4,992 5,153 161 3% 5,331 339 7% 6&22 3,664 3,901 3,523 (378) -10% 3,854 (47) -1% 13&29| 3,236 3,580 3,622 42 -3% 5,254 1,674 47% 35 11,606 12,473 12,298 (175) -5% 14,439 1,966 2%
Total Operating Income 7,396 7,021 7,397 376 5% 7,362 341 12% 4,592 4,811 4,489 (322) -7% 4,826 15 0% 4,988 5,309 5,351 42 1% 6,983 1,674 32% 16,976 17,141 17,237 96 1% 19,171 2,030 11%
-
)
SNet Operating Surplus/(Deficit) 2,819 1,639 2,121 482 23% 1,990 351 4% 1,592 1657 1,471 (186) -13% 1,588 (69) -4% 92 (981) (441) 540 286% 723 1,704 -31% 4,503 2,315 3,151 836 27% 4,301 1,986 46%
N
\l
Central Costs
Capital Charges and depreciation (641) (652) (676) (24) -4% (689) (37) -6% 7&23 (159) (159) (159) 0 0% (117) 42 26% (115) (146) (115) 31 21% (99) 47 32% (915) (957) (950) 7 1% (905) 52 5%
Other Central Costs* (Trf to and from reserves to
fund repairs and works, support costs and
Directorate apportionment) (246) 206 (180) (386) -187% (32) (238) -116% 8&24 (597) (398) (399) (1) 0% (315) 83 21% 14&30 (777) (803) (872) (69) -9%  (798) 5 1% 18 (1,620) (995)1 (1,451) (456) -46% (1,145) (150) -10%
Total Market (Expenditure)/income 1,932 1,193 1,265 72 6% 1,269 76 45% 836 1,100 913 (187) -20% 1,156 56 5% (800) (1,930) (1,428) 502 55% (174) 1,756 -12% 1,968 363 750 387 52% 2,251 1,888 84%

Notes

The City has adopted the UKGAAP standards.
Favourable variances over £50,000 and all adverse variances are reported
within Appendices 4A and 4B.




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28



Operating Statement Notes

APPENDIX 4A

The tables below analyse the favourable variances over £50,000 and all adverse
variance for the Wholesale Markets as reported on the Operating Summary which is

attached at Appendix 3.

The summary compares the Original 2017-18 to the

2017/18 Latest Budget for Approval (LAB). It has not been prepared in accordance
with conventional City of London Corporation format. Brackets on the summary
signify an expenditure item or a deficit position.

New

Spitalfields

Market Note

number

Description

2017/18 OR to LAB 2017/18 Variance

Expenditure

1

Employment
costs

The decrease of £2,000 is due to:

An increase of 1.5% for cost of living increases and
4% increase in London weighting together with
increments of £30,000 netted against a decrease
in administration and constable post for 6 months
of £28,000.

Premises

The decrease of £280,000, 16%, for premises
related expenditure is due to:

¢ Anincrease in cleaning costs of £53,000 for the
new Servest cleaning contract commencing in
October 2017.

e Anincrease in water costs of £44,000.

¢ Reduction in minor improvements works funded
from the Repair and Repainting fund of
£377,000 due to City Surveyors re-phasing.
The works estimated have now been reviewed
and scaled back to a more manageable list.

Supplies and
Services

The increase of £81,000, 51%, is due to:

e An increase of £90,000 which was agreed as a
central risk carry forward for the continuation of
the lease negotiations at Spitalfields Market
offset by a reduction of £9,000 for inspection
costs and communication costs.

Waste and
Cleaning contract

The increase of £95,000, 5% is due to the
retendered waste contract won by Country style
and the newly implemented corporate office
cleaning contract by Servest starting in October

Page 29




APPENDIX 4A

2017. This is recoverable under the service
charge.
Income
5 Rent The increase of £215,000, 11% is due to additional
backdated rent.
6 Charges for The increase in income of £161,000, 3%, is due to
services increased service charge costs.
7 Capital and Increased depreciation for equipment and buildings
Depreciation of £24,000 4%.
8 Other Central The £386,000, 187% increase is due to reduced
Costs service charge transfers of £377,000 from the
market reserves due to delays in repairs funded
from the repainting and repair fund and increased
Directorate recharges for the Strategic Review
£35,000 netted off against reductions for
insurances and support central recharges £26,000.
Billingsgate | Description 2017/18 OR to LAB 2017/18 Variance
Market Note
number
Expenditure
9 Employment costs | The increase of £11,000, 2% is due to
expected cost of living increase of 1.5% on
basic pay and 4% on London Weighting.
10 Premises The reduction of service charge premises
related costs of £191,000, 15% is due to;

e A reduction of contribution expected from
the tenants to the Market reserves fund of
£150,000.

e Revised energy budget due to new contract
from October 2017, resulting in a reduction
in electricity of £42,000.

e Reduction in general breakdown and
contract servicing budgets of £56,000.

e Increased costs for rates due to revaluation
of £49,000 and pest control and cleaning
materials of £8,000.

11 Supplies The increase in supplies and services of
Services £44,000, 38% is due to increases for uniforms

and equipment of £34,000 and £10,000
increase for legal/professional costs for the
rental renewal negotiations.

Page 30




APPENDIX 4A

Income

12 Rent, Wayleaves The increase of £56,000, 6% is due to rent
and Tolls reviews.

13 Charges for The reduced income of £378,000, 10%, is due
Services to:

e reduced service charge recovered because
of reduced costs on the service charge of
£203,000.

e reduced car parking income due to reduced
use by Fish Market customers £50,000.

e reduced advertising hoarding income of
£125,000.

14 Other central costs | There is a net increase of £1,000 due to

£46,000 for the Strategic Review netted against
reductions in insurance and central support
charges of £45,000.

Page 31




APPENDIX 4A

Smithfield | Description 2017/18 OR to LAB 2017/18 Variance
Market Note
number
Expenditure
15 Employee costs The £76,000 increase, 4% is due to cost of living
increases and increments.
16 Premises The £693,000, 17% reduction is due to:

e Re-phasing of the City Surveyor additional
work programme and planned works of
£614,000

e Reduction in electricity of £195,000 due to
better information of consumption and price to
set a revised estimate.

e An increase of Citigen energy/water costs of
£34,000.

e Increase in business rates of £83,000.

e Net reductions over several categories of
£1,000.

17 Supplies and The increase of £119,000, 28% is due to:
Services

e Increase of £100,000 for professional fees for
the rent negotiations and an increase of
£2,000 for the Crossrail compensation
negotiations.

e Increase of Christmas traffic security and
signage of £16,000 and a net increase across
several categories of £1,000.

Income
18 Other central costs | The increase of £69,000, 9% is due to the

increase for Strategic Review £54,000. A net
increase of £15,000 for increased surveyor's
recharges netted against reductions for insurance
and support costs.

Page 32




Operating Statement Notes

APPENDIX 4B

The tables below analyse the favourable variances over £50,000 and all adverse
variance for the Wholesale Markets as reported on the Operating Summary which is

attached at Appendix 3.

The summary compares the Original 2017-18 to the

Original 2018/19 Budget. It has not been prepared in accordance with conventional
City of London Corporation format. Brackets on the summary signify an expenditure
item or a deficit position.

New Description 2017/18 OR to 2018/19 OR Variance
Spitalfields
Market Note
number
Expenditure

19 Employees The increase in cost of £48,000, 3% which is
recoverable through the Service Charge is due to
increases for increments, cost of living uplift,
National Insurance and pensions.

20 Premises Related | The decrease in cost of £266,000, 15%, is in
relation to a decrease in repair and maintenance
of £372,000 netted off against increased costs for
the new office cleaning contract with Servest of
£47,000 and increased energy and water charges
of £59,000.

21 Waste/Recycling The £200,000, 11% increase in costs, is due to

Contract the re-tender of the waste contract and the
market uplift on the fixed price of the contract.

Income

22 Charges for The increase in income of £339,000, 7%, is due

services to income generated from the new entry barrier of
£400,000, netted off against a reduced budget for
car parking of £65,000 as this is now included in
the entry charge and a small net increase over
several other income categories of £4,000.

23 Capital and Increased depreciation for equipment and

Depreciation buildings of £37,000, 6%.
24 Other Central The net increase of £238,000, 116% is due to the
Costs transfer of funds to the reserves because of
reductions in projects.
Billingsgate | Description 2017/18 OR to 2018/19 OR Variance
Market Note
number
Expenditure
25 Employment costs | The £55,000, 3%, service charge increase is

due to higher increments and cost of living
increases.

Page 33




APPENDIX 4B

26 Premises The £19,000, 2% service charge increase is
due to:

e A decrease in energy costs of £30,000.

e Reduction of £50,000 for contribution to
market reserves due to reduced works.

e An increase in rates of £54,000, cleaning
and pest control materials of £10,000 and
general repairs of £35,000.

27 Supplies and The service charge increase of £10,000, 9% is
Services additional uniform costs such as stab vests.
Income
28 Rent The £62,000, 7%, is due to increases in rent.
29 Charges for The £47,000, 1% decrease is due to £50,000
Services reduction for fish market customer car parking
and a net increase over several income
categories of £3,000.
30 Other Central | The £83,000, 21% reduction is due to reduced
costs Contribution to the Repair and Special Works

fund of £50,000, reductions in insurance and
central support costs of £13,000 and a £20,000
reduction in transfers to the tenant repair fund.

Page 34




APPENDIX 4B

Smithfield

Description

Market Note

number

2017/18 OR to 2018/19 OR Variance

Expenditure

31

Employment.

The increased costs of £125,000, 7%, is due to
higher increments and cost of living increases.

32

Premises

The £218,000, 5% decrease is due to:

e A £631,000 decrease in City Surveyors
costs for additional works programme and
an increase for cyclical works of £14,000.

e Increased business rates for Smithfield
Market £52,000, HV tanking of plant,
£74,000 in the East Market, £64,000 to
complete installation of electric meters,
Citigen heating and cooling increases of
£54,000. This is netted off against a
reduction in electric of £45,000 due to
revision of consumption and price.

e Anincrease of £200,000 for services
payable by the City on vacant premises.

33

Transport

The increase in cost of £17,000, 567% is due to
the purchase of a ride on scrubber/dryer.

34

Supplies and
services

The increase in costs of £46,000, 11% is due to
an increase for a jet wash machine, £6,000,
Christmas traffic management, £16,000,
contractual increase for refuse collection,
£24,000.

INCOME

35

Charges for
Services

The increased income of £1,674,000, 47% is
due to:

e recovering cost of services from the tenants
as the capped agreement ends on
31.3.2018 of £1,808,000 less rates that
were directly recovered from individual
tenants which are now included in the
service charge of £173,000.

e increase from Commercial Office tenants of
£36,000 for the HV tanking and a net
increase for works, electric and water of

Page 35




APPENDIX 4B

£3,000.

Page 36




Agenda Iltem 5

Committee: Date:
Markets 29 November 2017
Subject: Public

Draft Departmental Business Plan 2018/19 - Markets and
Consumer Protection

Report of:
Director of Markets and Consumer Protection

Report author:
Don Perry, Markets and Consumer Protection

For Information

Summary

This report presents for information the draft high-level business plan for the
Department of Markets and Consumer Protection for 2018/19. It is presented
alongside the departmental estimate report to enable the draft ambitions and
objectives to be discussed in conjunction with the draft budget for the forthcoming

year.

Recommendation

Members are asked to note the Department of Markets and Consumer Protection’s
draft high-level business plan for 2018/19 and provide feedback where necessary.

Main Report

Background

1. As part of the new framework for corporate and business planning, departments
were instructed to produce standardised high-level, 2-side business plans for the
first time in 2017/18. These were presented as drafts to Service Committees in
January/February and as finals for formal approval in May/June. Members
generally welcomed these high-level plans for being brief, concise, focused and
consistent statements of the key ambitions and objectives for every department.

2. For 2018/19, departments have again been asked to produce high-level plans in
draft, this time to be presented to Service Committees alongside the
departmental Estimate Reports, so that draft ambitions can be discussed at the
same time as budgets. This represents a first step towards integrating budget-

setting and priority-setting.

3. Discussions are also taking place on aligning other key corporate processes with
the corporate and business plans, such as workforce planning and risk
management. Achieving this will represent a significant step towards the City
Corporation being able to optimise its use of resources. The next step will be the
presentation of the overall corporate budget alongside the refreshed Corporate

Plan at the Court of Common Council in March.

Page 37



4. With these key documents in place and a new corporate performance
management process being brought forward, the City Corporation will be able to
drive departmental activities to deliver on corporate priorities and allocate its
resources in full knowledge of where it can achieve most impact on the issues
and opportunities faced by the City, London and the UK.

5. Arevised draft of the Corporate Plan has been produced following consultation
with Service Committees and Members between April and July, and is being
used for staff engagement between September and November. Members should
therefore start to see closer alignment between the departmental business plans
and the draft outcomes from the Corporate Plan.

6. Work is also taking place on reviewing the content and format of the supporting
detail that will sit beneath the high-level business plans. This includes:
information about inputs (e.g. IT, workforce, budgets, property and assets);
improved links to risk registers; value for money assessments, and schedules of
measures and key performance indicators for outputs and outcomes. This will be
a key element in the move towards business planning becoming less of a
document production process and more of a joined-up service planning process,
linked to corporate objectives.

Draft high-level plan

7. This report presents at Appendix 1, the draft high-level plan for 2018/19 for the
Department of Markets and Consumer Protection.

Department of Markets and Consumer Protection

8. The draft high-level business plan draws together the wide range of services
provided, and regulatory functions carried out, by the whole Department. As the
Department reports to three separate Committees (Port Health and
Environmental Services Committee; Licensing Committee; Markets Committee)
for discrete aspects of its work, only the information relating to the work of the
Markets, for which this Committee is responsible, is shown in clear, black, font
on the copy of the plan at Appendix 1.

9. The ambitions, objectives and performance measures contained with the high-
level business plan are underpinned by the Department’s statutory duties, core
functions and its commitment to supporting corporate priorities.

Corporate & Strategic Implications

10. The ambitions set out in the plan align with a number of the outcomes in the draft
Corporate Plan 2018-23, particularly those within the strategic objectives to
“Grow the economy” and “Contribute to a flourishing society”. Much of the work
of the Markets is focussed on providing the environment in which the markets
and their stakeholders, the buyers, our tenants, and local communities, can
thrive and flourish.

Page 38



Conclusion

11.This report presents the draft high-level plan for 2018/19 for the Department of
Markets and Consumer Protection in order that Members are able to feed into
this plan at an early stage. A final plan will be presented for approval prior to the
start of the 2018/19 financial year.

Appendices

e Appendix 1 — Draft high-level business plan 2018/19

Don Perry

Head of Business Performance, Department of Markets and consumer Protection
T: 020 7332 3221

E: donald.perry@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 39


mailto:donald.perry@cityoflondon.gov.uk

APPENDIX 1

We provide vital public services by advising and regulating a wide variety of businesses in the Square Mile and beyond to protect consumers and
communities from legislative non-compliance and fraud. We also provide access to fresh produce as a vital link in the food supply chain for London and the
South by operating three thriving wholesale food markets.

Our ambitions are that: What we do is: Our budget for 2018/19 is:
Expenditure £'000
Markets 16,030
Income
e We will operate thriving markets, with Markets (20,500)
modern infrastructure, that meet the
needs of buyers, our tenants, and local
communities. Net Local Risk
Expenditure
(surplus)
Markets (4,470)

‘ ‘ We operate the three City of London wholesale food markets:

e Aslandlords we manage and provide administration, maintenance, cleaning and
security services to Billingsgate, New Spitalfields and Smithfield Markets.

‘ o These markets supply fish, fruit, vegetables, flowers, and meat to a host of food
‘ service sectors within the South East and beyond.

e Customers range from catering companies, butchers, fishmongers, and
greengrocers to restaurants, hotels, schools, street and retail markets, secondary
wholesalers, and small local businesses.

e The wholesale markets still turnover some 30% of the fresh produce entering
London and are a vital link in the food supply chain.

Department of Markets and Consumer Protection 2018/19
O abed



APPENDIX 1

Our top line objectives are: What we’ll measure:
Service deliverables
1. 1.
2.
3.
4,
5. 2.
6.
7. 3.
8. Investigate, and begin to implement, new income generation proposals.
9. Complete the delivery of Service Based Review (SBR) measures and historic repair works at Smithfield Market.
10.Build on the findings of the strategic review of markets and produce report for decision by Members. 4.
Corporate programmes and projects
[}

5.

- Corporate Apprenticeship Scheme: support the scheme by offering a range of suitable placements for candidates.
Qe Focus on further reductions in energy usage as part of the Energy Efficiency Programme.

(@)

m° 6.

N 7.

HDepartmental programmes and projects
e Procure and install a multi-lane entry barrier system and pedestrian access control at New Spitalfields Market. 8. Income levels.
e |dentify and take up opportunities to increase income generation in all parts of the department and thereby achieve the corporately 9. Income levels at Smithfield

required 2% savings target. Market.

e In liaison with the IT Department, continue to develop the use of technology and mobile working solutions. 10.Report findings of the review to
How we plan to develop our capabilities this year Markets Committee for decision
e Improve working relationships with partners, Government Departments and other agencies through collaboration and sharing by May 2018.

information and expertise.
e Refresh our Workforce Plan, including consideration of appropriate proposals for succession planning.
e Continue to develop our leadership capabilities through the departmental Leadership Development Programme.

What we plan to do in the future:
¢ |dentify the potential impacts and opportunities of the UK’s exit from the EU and prepare appropriate strategies to address them.

Department of Markets and Consumer Protection 2018/19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



Agenda Iltem 6

Committee: Date:

Markets Committee 29 November 2017
Subject: Public

Markets Committee Risk

Report of: For Information
David Smith

Director of Markets and Consumer Protection

Report author:
Donald Perry
Department of Markets and Consumer Protection

Summary

This report has been produced to provide the Markets Committee with assurance
that risk management procedures in place within the Department of Markets and
Consumer Protection are satisfactory and that they meet the requirements of the
corporate Risk Management Framework.

Risk is reviewed regularly by the departmental Senior Management Team as part of
the on-going management of operations within the Department of Markets and
Consumer Protection. In addition to the flexibility for emerging risks to be raised as
they are identified, a process exists for in-depth periodic review of the risk register.

The Department of Markets and Consumer Protection have identified a number of
departmental risks. Of these, the most significant risks for this Committee to
consider are:

= MCP-NS 001 — Workplace Traffic Management, New Spitalfields (Current
Risk: AMBER)

= MCP-SM 001 — HGV Unloading Operations, Smithfield (Current Risk: RED)

Recommendation(s)
Members are asked to:

= Note the report and the actions taken in the Department of Markets and Consumer
Protection to monitor, and manage effectively, risks arising from our operations.

Main Report
Background

1. The Risk Management Framework of the City of London Corporation requires each
Chief Officer to report regularly to Committee on the key risks faced in their
department.

Current Position

2. This report provides an update of the key risks that exist in relation to the operations
of the wholesale markets within the Department of Markets and Consumer Protection.

1
Page 43



The report also outlines the processes adopted for the on-going review of risk and
mitigating actions.

Risk Management Process

3. The Department of Markets and Consumer Protection risk management is a standing
agenda item at the regular Departmental Senior Management Group (SMG) meeting,
over and above the suggested quarterly review. SMG receives the risk register for
review, together with a briefing note highlighting any changes since the previous
review. Consideration is also given as to whether any emerging risks exist for
inclusion in the risk register as part of Divisional updates on key issues from each of
the Superintendents and Assistant Directors, ensuring that adequate consideration is
given to operational risk.

4. Between each SMG meeting, risk and control owners are consulted regarding the
risks for which they are responsible, with updates captured accordingly.

5. Regular risk management update reports are provided to this Committee in
accordance with the City’s Risk Management Framework.

Identification of New Risks

6. New and emerging risks are identified through a number of channels, the main being:
= Directly by SMG as part of the regular review process.

» In response to regular review of delivery of the departmental Business Plan;
slippage against key deliverables, for example.

= Annual, fundamental, risk register review, undertaken by the tier of
management below SMG.

The risk register may be refreshed over and above the stated process for review and
oversight, in response to emerging issues or changing circumstances.

Summary of Key Risks

7. The Department of Markets and Consumer Protection’s Risk Register for Markets,
attached as Appendix 1 to this report, has one RED risk and one AMBER risk.

MCP-NS 001 — Workplace Traffic Management New Spitalfields (Current Risk:
AMBER no change)

Over 200 forklift trucks are in operation on the New Spitalfields Market site.

An accident involving a pedestrian and a vehicle which resulted in a serious or life
changing injury could result in prosecution, a fine, reputational damage for the City
and have an adverse impact on the operation and sustainability of the service.

MCP-SM 001 — HGV Unloading Operations Smithfield (Current Risk: RED no
change)

A lack of suitable and sufficient training and adequate management controls in
relation to Heavy Goods Vehicle banksman activities, undertaken by staff employed
by Smithfield Market tenants, on an area under the overall control of the City, could
result in a serious or life changing injury to pedestrians, caused by uncontrolled or
unguided reversing vehicles.

2
Page 44



An accident involving a pedestrian and a vehicle which resulted in a serious or life
changing injury could result in prosecution, a fine, reputational damage for the City
and have an adverse impact on the operation and sustainability of the service.

This risk is still rated as RED as, although some safety improvements have been

made, the Market management team does not yet have complete confidence that the
new arrangements will deliver a sustained reduction in risk as this depends upon the
effectiveness of the tenants’ staff, which has still to be proven beyond the short term.

Assuming that the current improvements are maintained, it is anticipated that this risk
will revert to back to its previous Amber status by 31% January 2018.

Conclusion

. Members are asked to note that risk management processes within the Department of
Markets and Consumer Protection adhere to the requirements of the City
Corporation’s Risk Management Framework. Risks identified within the operational
and strategic responsibilities of the Department of Markets and Consumer Protection
are proactively managed.

Appendices

= Appendix A — Markets Risk Register Summary

Background Papers

Department Business Plan

Department Risk Review

Department Business Plan Progress Report
Risk Management Strategy

Contacts:

Donald Perry (Report author)

Head of Business Performance

T: 020 7332 3221

E: donald.perry@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Smithfield Market:

Superintendent — Mark Sherlock

T: 020 7332 3747

E: mark.sherlock@cityoflondon.gov.uk

New Spitalfields Market:
Superintendent — Ben Milligan

T: 020 8518 7670

E: ben.milligan@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Billingsgate Market:

Superintendent — Malcolm Macleod

T: 020 7332 3067

E: malcolm.macleod@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 45


mailto:donald.perry@cityoflondon.gov.uk
mailto:mark.sherlock@cityoflondon.gov.uk
mailto:ben.milligan@cityoflondon.gov.uk
mailto:malcolm.macleod@cityoflondon.gov.uk

MCP Markets Committee Risk Report Appendix A

Report Author: John Smith

MNatSEL )
%’T .
M‘v\/"ﬁ

DIRIGE,

CITY
Generated on: 13 November 2017 LONDON
Risk no, Title, |Risk Description (Cause, Event, Impact) Current Risk Rating & Score Risk Update and date of update Target Risk Rating & Score Target | Current
Creation date, Date |Risk score
Owner change
indicator
MCP-SM 001 | Cause: A lack of suitable and sufficient training and 16 The tenant banks-man training is 12 31-Jan-18 =y
HGV adequate management controls in relation to Heavy Goods | g complete, and a jointly signed letter |2
Unloading Vehicle banksman activities undertaken by staff employed | 2 from the Superintendent and 2
Operations by Smithfield Market tenants. [ Chairman of the SMTA has been o
Event: Serious or life changing injury to members of the | = issued to all freight transport -
Smithfield public, market staff and other service users caused by Impact companies which deliver to the
Market uncontrolled or unguided reversing vehicles. Market, confirming the improved
Effect: Realisation of this risk could result in a operational safety standards required
prosecution, fine and reputational damage for the City. and the consequential lock-off of the
o delivery bays if these standards are
Q not met. This letter included a site
(@] plan, delivery process, and site rules.
D Detailed monitoring continues by the
N onsite Constabulary.
(@)}

Continuing risk management work
streams are;

Stakeholder actions/review meetings
set with the SMTA until all
recommendations of the FTA report
are fully demonstrable, evidence
based, and implemented.

Ensure that all training records of
individuals are retained and updated
by the SMTA, on behalf of the
tenants, for review with the
Superintendent’s office for ongoing
controls.

The City will implement immediate
closure of vehicle lock-ons where




/v obed

24-Feb-2015
Mark Sherlock

unsafe & unmanaged activities are
identified and, after consultation with
the SMTA, an effective date agreed.

In the short to medium-term the
Superintendent will evaluate the
opportunity to remove certain human
inputs/errors in the control process,
and to replace them with software
managed and sequenced inter-lock
interfaces, before the lock-on process
is safely complete. This has been
progressed with site visits being made
by industry experts.

Good progress is being made through
structured working with the SMTA.
Improvements have been made with
both training and additional safety
measures introduced by the Market,
such as Tensa barriers, additional
signage, road markings and hatchings,
traffic lights, speed controls,
additional bollards, and road surface
improvement including road markings
and signage.

It is anticipated that by continuing
with this approach, the current Red
risk will be able to be reduced to
Amber by the end of January 2018.

09 Nov 2017

No change




Action no, Description Latest Note Managed By |Latest Due Date
Title, Note
Date

MCP-SM 001f [Work with the Market Tenants’ Association to review Tenant banks-man training is complete, and a jointly signed letter from the Superintendent and [Mark Sherlock |13-Nov- |31-Jan-
Review sender delivery practices. Chairman of the SMTA has been issued to all freight transport companies which deliver to the 2017 2018
delivery Market, confirming the improved operational safety standards required and the consequential
practices lock-off of the delivery bays if these standards are not met. This letter included a site plan,

delivery process, and site rules. Detailed monitoring continues by the onsite Constabulary.

Continuing risk management work streams are;

Stakeholder actions/review meetings set with the SMTA until all recommendations of the FTA

report are fully demonstrable, evidence based, and implemented.

Ensure that all training records of individuals are retained and updated by the SMTA, on
o behalf of the tenants, for review with the Superintendent’s office for ongoing controls.
8 The City will implement immediate closure of vehicle lock-ons where unsafe & unmanaged
D activities are identified and after consultation with the SMTA an effective date agreed.
g In the short to medium-term the Superintendent will evaluate the opportunity to remove certain

human inputs/errors in the control process, and to replace them with software managed and

sequenced inter-lock interfaces, before the lock-on process is safely complete. This has been

progressed with site visits being made by industry experts.

Good progress is being made through structured working with the SMTA. Improvements have

been made with both training and additional safety measures introduced by the Market, such as

Tensa barriers, additional signage, road markings and hatchings, traffic lights, speed controls,

additional bollards, and road surface improvement including road markings and signage.

It is anticipated that by continuing with this approach, the current Red risk will be able to be

reduced to Amber.
MCP-SM 001h [Monitor market traffic routes. A further audit is due to be conducted by the Constabulary during the first two weeks of Mark Sherlock |08-Nov- |30-Nov-
Monitor traffic November which will be reported on to the November Committee meeting. 2017 2017
routes.
MCP-SM 001i |Work with the Market Tenants’ Association to review The tenant banks-man training is complete, and a jointly signed letter from the Superintendent | Mark Sherlock [15-Nov- [31-Jan-
Review unloading practices. and Chairman of the SMTA has been issued to all freight transport companies which deliver to 2017 2018
unloading the Market, confirming the improved operational safety standards required and the




practices

61 abed

consequential lock-off of the delivery bays if these standards are not met. This letter included a
site plan, delivery process, and site rules. Detailed monitoring continues by the onsite
Constabulary.

Continuing risk management work streams are;

Stakeholder actions/review meetings set with the SMTA until all recommendations of the FTA
report are fully demonstrable, evidence based, and implemented.

Ensure that all training records of individuals are retained and updated by the SMTA, on
behalf of the tenants, for review with the Superintendent’s office for ongoing controls.

The City will implement immediate closure of vehicle lock-ons where unsafe & unmanaged
activities are identified and after consultation with the SMTA an effective date agreed.

Good progress is being made through structured working with the SMTA. Improvements have
been made with both training and additional safety measures introduced by the Market, such as
Tensa barriers, additional signage, road markings and hatchings, traffic lights, speed controls,
additional bollards, and road surface improvement including road markings and signage. The
next progress review meeting with the SMTA has been proposed in December.

Subsequent audits in July (100% guided movements) and September (100% guided
movements) evidenced a dramatic improvement in this safety aspect. However there remains
an element of second driver guided movements and the detail of these has been shared with the
SMTA with a proposal to issue secondary jointly-signed correspondence to those freight
transport companies reminding them of the site rules and application of rejected deliveries
should this continue.

It is anticipated that by continuing with this approach the current Red risk will be able to be
reduced to Amber at the end of January 2018.

MCP-SM 001
Review forklift
management.

Review and implement the local forklift truck management
scheme.

The revised Policy has been circulated and a joint COL/SMTA meeting due to be held on 30th
November to formalise an agreement before the end of 2017. Previous dates have been
postponed due to the unavailability of SMTA members.

Mark Sherlock

15-Nov-
2017

31-Dec-
2017




Risk no, Title, [Risk Description (Cause, Event, Impact) Current Risk Rating & Score Risk Update and date of update Target Risk Rating & Score Target | Current
Creation date, Date |Risk score
Owner change
indicator
MCP-NS 001 12 Outstanding issues are being pursued 8 29-Dec- =
Workplace Cause: Over 200 forklift trucks operate on the New K O with tenants and further behavioural |2 2017
Traffic Spitalfields Market site. 2 changes for timed segregation will be | 2 O
Management [Event: There is a serious risk of life changing injurytoa | @ applied following the installation of [ @
pedestrian if vehicle movements in this constrained space |— Entrance barriers. This is subject to =
New are not appropriately managed and controlled. Impact planning approval which is being Impact
Spitalfields Effect: An accident involving a pedestrian and a vehicle sought at this time.
Market which resulted in a serious or life changing injury could
result in prosecution, a fine, reputational damage for the
24-Feb-2015 City z_ind hgve an adversg impact on the operation and 13 Nov 2017 No change
sustainability of the service.
Ben Milligan
iLY)
ion no, Description Latest Note Managed By |Latest Due Date
le, Note
R Date
IEDP-NS 001i |A member of staff from all tenants to be nominated and This action is in progress. Ben Milligan  [13-Nov- |29-Dec-
Train Managers [trained in FLT safety procedures. 2017 2017
In Forklift
Safety
MCP-NS 001j [Artic Time Segregation and No Tolerance in market hall. | A parking policy has now been implemented that encompasses HGV parking. Penalty charge |Ben Milligan |13-Nov- |29-Dec-
Create Time notices have been implemented to ensure that vehicles park in their respective areas. Curtain 2017 2017
Segregation side trucks now have special provision for their parking and unloading. An offence has been
created for forklift drivers unloading HGVs outside loading times allowable around the
market. HGVs onsite must not unload around the market beyond 3am up until 8am.
Once the car park at the far end of the market has been reviewed and the parking changed, as
required, these HGVs will not be allowed to unload around the market between 12 midnight
and 8am. This is the next step in the process.
MCP-NS 001k [Controlled barriers entry system for pedestrians and This action is in progress Ben Milligan |13-Nov- |01-Oct-
Install Barrier |vehicles. 2017 2018
System




Agenda Iltem 8

Committee(s): Date:

Markets 29 November 2017
Subject: Public

Smithfield Market — Condenser Water Cooling System -

Update

Report of: For Information

The City Surveyor (Report no. CS561/17)

Report author:
Andrew Crafter, Principal Engineer,
City Surveyor’'s Department

Summary

This update report informs Members about recent developments on Smithfield
Market'’s refrigeration condenser water cooling system.

The system was set to provide water at 24°C since 27 September and the
temperature was further increased to 25°C on 14 November 2017. Although
there were early reports of some fridges struggling, following the replacement of
three fridge condensers with higher capacity units, reports of problems then
ceased.

The reports of dirt contamination in condensers in August were traced to
malfunction of the City’s water softeners which supply make-up water to the
system. These problems were resolved in early September.

Interviews with the Tenants’ maintenance contractors about the use of and
release to atmosphere of refrigerant gases from fridges are continuing and once
complete the City will decide what line it wishes to take and policy for the future.

Recommendation(s)

Members are invited to note the contents of this report.

Main Report

Background

1.

The Market’s condenser water cooling system removes waste heat from 120
tenants’ refrigeration units in East, West and Poultry Markets and dissipates it
to the atmosphere via five cooling towers located in the Poultry Market. The
system is operated and maintained by the City Corporation as Landlord.

Page 51




2. In 2014 the City Corporation completed a programme of works to improve the
water circulation in the three Market buildings served and remove dirt
contamination in the system. As a result performance greatly improved.

3. The cooling system was originally specified to provide water to Tenants’ fridges
at 30°C. Over the years this was gradually reduced and for approximately five
years was set at 20°C. This was done to assist fridges at a time when there
were issues with water flow, dirt contamination, system balancing, and Tenants’
condenser under-sizing.

4.  Over the last 18 months the City has gradually raised the system operating
temperature a degree at a time to alleviate airborne dirt ingestion at cooling
towers, allow more economical operation in the future, and reduce risk of
breakdown. The eventual aim is to operate the system at 25°C year round.
However, a higher temperature results in fridges working harder and in some
cases experiencing problems.

Current Position

5. Inline with the City’s plan, the system operating temperature was raised from
23°C to 24°C on 27 September 2017. Following this reports were received from
one of the maintenance contractors of fridge problems. With the agreement of
the respective Tenants he replaced three fridge condensers with higher
capacity units which resolved the issues with those fridges. More recently a
fourth condenser has been replaced. Since then no further issues have been
reported.

6. On 14 November the system operating temperature was raised a further degree
to 25°C.

Incidents since last report

7.  Since the September 2017 report there have been no further operating
incidents reported on the cooling system.

Investigation into refrigerant gas releases from Tenant’s equipment last year

8. The City’s investigations into the use and unintended release of refrigerant
gases from Tenants’ fridges have continued. The first of the three refrigeration
contractors, Bourne Refrigeration, was interviewed on 26 September 2017. This
contractor maintains only five fridges in the Meat Market. He advised some of
those operated at high refrigerant gas pressure and the high pressure cut-out
switches were set very high. Trips had occurred when the water had been
interrupted, but without gas discharge. The tenants do not have a planned
maintenance programme for these fridges and maintenance tends only to be
reactive. Details of work done are recorded on invoices; ideally there would be
a maintenance log book, but this is not the case.

9. The second refrigeration contractor, R Perkins & Sons, was interviewed on 16
November 2017. They maintain 59 fridges in the Meat Market, including the

Page 52



10.

three which released gas in November 2016 when the City’s pumps stopped.
They advised that there are maintenance contracts in place for all fridges
managed, which includes preventative maintenance and leak checks up to four
times a year, and they claim to keep formal records of refrigerant use and any
discharges. The release of gas is the result of the high pressure cut-out switch
being set at a level too close to the rating of the pressure relief valve.

Due to availability of key personnel it has proved difficult to find suitable dates
to meet the third refrigeration contractor. Once all three have been seen the
City will decide what line it wishes to take and policy for the future.

Follow-up to previous incidents

11.

12.

13.

As covered in the last report, excessive amounts of dirt contamination had been
detected in the cooling system in August-September 2017. The water treatment
sub-contractor confirmed that both water softeners had been passing hard (un-
softened) water into the system for two separate periods of several days in
August. On one service visit the salt supply had been found to have run out.
This would have accounted for the calcium scale contamination found to have
accumulated in strainers and condensers. The time taken to respond was at
least partly due to a new member of their staff taking over the duties at this time
who was not adequately briefed on the critical need to rectify any faults found
as a matter of priority. The faults were cleared by early September.

The problems occurring resulted in a claim from one of the maintenance
contractors for cleaning condensers totalling £2,120. This charge has been met
by the City.

The Superintendent, Facilities Manager, Principal Engineer and Head of
Maintenance have discussed this and agreed a number of measures to prevent
a recurrence:

Set up automated email warning messages when system goes into alarm;
Review call-out procedures with water treatment sub-contractor;

Set up service level agreement with Skanska to respond to alarms within
agreed timescales if possible;

Arrange annual test of all system alarms;

Increase reserves of salt held on site local to softeners.

Proposals

14.

15.

Performance of fridges will continue to be monitored and any reports of fridges
experiencing problems investigated following the increase in temperature to
25°C.

The City will complete the investigations with maintenance contractors into the
use and unintended release of refrigerant gases from Tenants’ fridges.

Corporate & Strategic Implications

Page 53



16. The system supports the meat trade at Smithfield Market and the following
Strategic Aims:

o To provide modern, efficient and high quality local services and policing
within the Square Mile for workers, residents and visitors with a view to
delivering sustainable outcomes.

o To provide valued services to London and the nation.

Implications

17. The cooling system operated by the City provides a critical service for Tenants’
refrigeration equipment. A failure of the system could potentially expose the
City to claims from Tenants for loss of product. The City therefore needs to
ensure it provides a reliable service that meets the needs of the Tenants, whilst
at the same time keeping its operating and maintenance costs and risk of
breakdown to the minimum.

Conclusion

18. Following the increase in system temperature to 24°C on 27 September 2017,
there were reports of some fridges struggling at this higher temperature. After
three fridge condensers had been replaced with higher capacity units, reports of
problems then ceased. As all fridges appeared to be running satisfactorily, the
temperature was further increased a final step to 25°C on 14 November 2017.

19. The reports of dirt contamination in condensers in August were traced to
malfunction of the City’s water softeners which supply make-up water to the
system. The problems were resolved in September.

20. Recognition by Tenants of the need to replace further condensers with higher-
capacity units is welcome. There are probably a further dozen fridges on the
system which would benefit.

21. Interviews with the Tenants’ maintenance contractors about the use of and

release to atmosphere of refrigerant gases are continuing and once complete
the City will decide what line it wishes to take and policy for the future.

Background Papers

Report of the City Surveyor ‘Smithfield Market — Condenser Water Cooling System —
update’ to Markets Committee, September 2017 (Report ref. CS413/17).

Andrew Crafter

Principal Engineer, Operations Group, City Surveyor’s Department

T:020 7332 1252
E: Andrew.Crafter@Cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 54



Agenda Item 9

Committee(s) Dated:
Streets & Walkways Sub — For Decision 17/10/2017
Markets Committee — For Information 29/11/2017
Subject: Public

North — South Cycle Superhighway Phase 2

Report of: For Decision
Director of the Built Environment

Report author:
Sam Lee

Summary

In 2016, TfL consulted on proposals to extend their North — South Cycle
Superhighway from Stonecutter Street to Kings Cross.

In November 2016, Members of the S&W Sub-Committee supported TfL’s proposals
in principle and agreed for officers to continue to work with TfL to see if they would
agree to a suspension of the proposed banned left turn into West Smithfield during
the market’s busiest working hours and a new layout at the Stonecutter Street
junction.

This report therefore updates Members on the outcome of this work and advises on
a number of significant improvements that officers’ have secured including a new
layout at Stonecutter Street. However, TfL have not agreed to a timed suspension of
the proposed left turn ban into West Smithfield as requested by the Markets
Committee.

Your City Transportation officers are recommending that Members support TfL’s
proposals even though these will cause some inconvenience for those wishing to
access the market. Your officers’ position is informed in part due to the evidence
provided by TfL of the current relatively low demand for the left turn into West
Smithfield, in part by the traffic delay that introducing a timed suspension would
cause but primarily having regard to the increased road danger it is believed would
result from a timed suspension of the ban. Therefore this report seeks Members
agreement to accept TfL’s proposals.

Recommendation(s)
Members are asked to:

e Accept and support TfL’s proposal and approve its concept design as shown
in Appendix 1,

Page 55



e Agree that officers continue to work with TfL to facilitate the delivery of the
proposals using the powers and authority available to the City Corporation.

Main Report
Background

1. In March 2016, TfL carried out a public consultation exercise on proposals to
extend their North-South Cycle Superhighway (N-S CSH) from Stonecutter Street
to Kings Cross. Within the City, the route would run along Farringdon Street.

2. The City considered those proposals fell short of addressing the various issues
and implications particularly at the West Smithfield and Stonecutter Street
junctions. TfL was therefore asked to reconsider their proposal.

3. In November 2016, TfL carried out a further public consultation exercise on
proposed changes to the West Smithfield junction. These revised proposals
offered substantial improvements, particularly around road safety benefits, pedal
cycle connectivity and pedestrian crossings but also introduced a banned left turn
into West Smithfield for motor vehicles.

4. In December 2016, your committee considered these proposals in detail and

resolved to:-

e support TfL's proposal in principle to extend the North — South Cycle
Superhighway from Stonecutter Street to Kings Cross;

« instruct officers to work with TfL and consider how the cycle lane separation at
Stonecutter Street might be improved; and

e support the resolution of the Markets Committee for a suspension of the
banned turn during the main market hours (9pm — 5am) and instructed
officers to continue to work with TfL to establish if a timed suspension of the
banned left turn is practicable during key market operating times.

Current Position

5. Since Members decision in December 2016, officers have continued to work with
TfL and requested that they explore if a timed suspension of the banned left turn
could be accommodated, especially during the main market operational hours.

6. Atthe end of March 2017, TfL advised officers, that they have completed a
detailed assessment of our request and have concluded that they intend to
proceed to implementation with the full time ban, as proposed in the consultation.
Their latest proposals can be seen in Appendix 1.

7. They subsequently published their response to the public consultation and the
issues raised. An extract of their detailed response to our request is as follows:

“When designing a scheme, consideration is given to safety, local access and

network resilience, with the aim of proving the most appropriate balance for all
road users in each location. The decision to propose a banned turn is taken only

Page 56



after all of these factors to remove the risk of the left hook conflicts between
motor traffic turning into West Smithfield and cyclist heading southbound along
Farringdon Street, as this one of the most frequent kinds of cycle collision at this
junction.

Throughout the consultation we have engaged with the SMTA about southbound
access to the market. We undertook detailed traffic counts and analysis at the
junction which showed that, during market hours, the number of motor vehicles
turning left into West Smithfield is around 40 per hour.

We expect that the alternative routes available nearby will be able to
accommodate traffic that would have used the left turn without seeing significant
increase in journey times or traffic levels.

The design for the junction of Farringdon Street and West Smithfield includes
segregated with-flow cycle tracks on both sides of the road with separate stop
lines for cyclists and motor traffic. There is not enough space on Farringdon
Street to have separate left-turn and ahead traffic lanes to hold back left turning
traffic when cyclists are travelling south. Under the proposed signal staging if
traffic were to turn left onto West Smithfield, it would turn across the path of
southbound cyclists, putting them in conflict. This is not permitted under
Department for Transport (DfT) regulations which state that conflicting
movements within the same stage must be separated.

A part time turn would require an additional traffic signal stage to separate the
conflicting left turning traffic and the southbound cyclists, which would add time to
the overall signal timings at the junction. In this busy part of the road network, an
additional signal stage could only be provided when traffic flows are lower
(between midnight and 6am at this junction). Traffic counts show that there is a
high demand for the left turn between 8pm and 9am which is beyond the times in
which the additional signal stage could be provided without causing significant
journey time increases for buses and general traffic on Farringdon Street.

Further to this, the risk of contraventions of the left turn ban throughout the day
would introduce a hook risk for cyclists. The nearby bus stop reduces visibility
between traffic and cyclists which contributes to the risk of a collision.

We therefore intend to proceed with the full time ban as proposed in the
consultation.”

. A copy of these documents will be made available in the Members Reading
Room but can also be down loaded from here: Consultation Report. Issues
Raised.

. Responses to other issues and concerns such as traffic signals, journey times,
disruption, conflicts, pedestrian facilities and other detailed issues can also be
found in those documents. A copy of the Road Safety Audit can be found in
Appendix 2. Appendix 3 illustrates TfL’s assessment of the lower traffic flows
(between midnight to 6am).

Page 57


https://consultations.tfl.gov.uk/roads/west-smithfield/user_uploads/csns-west-smithfield-factual-consultation-report-final.pdf
https://consultations.tfl.gov.uk/roads/west-smithfield/user_uploads/csns-west-smithfield-response-to-issues-raised-report-final-1.pdf
https://consultations.tfl.gov.uk/roads/west-smithfield/user_uploads/csns-west-smithfield-response-to-issues-raised-report-final-1.pdf

10.In relation to the Stonecutter Street junction, TfL has reconsidered the design of
the cycle separation and have agreed to a new layout. This is also shown in
Appendix 1. This new layout will control all traffic movements including pedal
cyclists on Farringdon Street which will enable pedestrians to cross the whole
carriageway on a “green man” stage. This is what local occupiers have been
asking from since the beginning and therefore meets their needs.

11.In terms of the works required on the City’s roads, the City entered into a Section
8 Agreement with TfL authorising them to carry out highway works on the City’s
highway for the purpose of implementing the Cycle Superhighway, but subject to
the City first approving the detailed design. Their scheme also potentially impacts
the City’s bridge protective measures under Holborn Viaduct. As part of an
agreement with TfL under s.8 of the Highways Act 1980 on 25" July 2012, TfL is
required to seek the City’s consent if it wanted to make or alter those measures
but that consent should not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. So far, TfL has
not been able to demonstrate that their proposals offer the same level of bridge
protection. Discussions are still on-going but it is anticipated that this will be
resolved shortly to enable the City to grant TfL this consent.

12.TfL has recently advised that statutory public consultation to effect the banned
left turn in to West Smithfield and other measures associated with the N-S CSH
will commence from 29™ September 2017. Officers can confirm that this has
indeed commenced. Responses must be lodged with TfL before the 20™ October
2017.

Options
13. Officers consider that there are two options:-

a) Accept and support TfL’'s proposal, acknowledging that they have explored
and considered other alternatives and where possible these have been
incorporated, and approve the concept design, or

b) Formally object by responding to their statutory public consultation whilst
continuing to lobby, at a political level, TfL and the Mayor of London to
make changes, and withhold approval to the detailed design on the City’s
highway.

City Transportation Comments

14.Officers have challenged TfL’s proposals as far as possible and have secured
some very significant improvements since the original consultation in early 2016.
These include:-
a) a new junction layout and control which addresses the high levels of
collisions at Farringdon Street and West Smithfield,
b) A better and safer cycle interchange between the City’s Quietway and
TfL’s Superhighway,
c) A safer and more convenient pedestrian crossing over Farringdon Street
and West Smithfield, and
d) A new layout at the Stonecutter Street junction which meets local needs.

Page 58



15. Although it has not been possible to secure a scheme which enables traffic to
turn left into West Smithfield, there are good nearby alternative routes, in
particular using the Charterhouse Street junction. In addition, the surveys carried
out to assess the scheme showed that, during the suggested time suspension of
the banned turn (9pm to 5am), the volume of left turning traffic into West
Smithfield are even lower, with an average of 18 motor vehicles per hour. Whilst
it is recognised that this will add additional traffic on to the surrounding road
network, the additional volume from this banned left turn is very low and therefore
unlikely to add to congestion or road safety implications. A summary of the traffic
data for this junction is provided in Appendix 4.

16.More fundamentally, TfL’s greatest concern with permitting the part time turn is
the potential safety implications which may arise, particularly from non-
compliance of the banned turn when it is operational. The traffic data shows that
there is a high demand for the left turn either side of the suggested timed
suspension. This presents a greater risk arising from the potential for non-
compliance of the banned turn, either intentionally or deliberately and thus
potentially leading to the common “left hook” collision with a cyclist. Members
may recall that the two most recent fatalities in the City (at Ludgate Circus and
Bank junction) to cyclists involved the left hook conflict (HGV’s turning left).

17.The current design makes the left turn ban more or less self-regulating i.e.
physically difficult to carry out the left turn as well as the ability to convey signage
of the ban turn more clearly to road users. A part time turn would likely introduce
a level of uncertainty as the design would need to enable the left turn at all times
and the associated signage will be less clear. This is likely to lead to an increase
in intentional or unintentional non-compliance and therefore increases safety
risks.

18.Your officers therefore accept TfL’s safety concerns and believe that overall and
on balance, Members should support Option a).

19.1f Members are however minded to agree to Option b), the City would be required
to state the grounds on which the objection is to be made. However, it should be
noted that, unlike other traffic authorities, TfL are not required to set out an
arbitration procedure if agreement is not reached when consulting an affected
authority. TfL are only required to consider the objection and having considered
that objection they can proceed to implementation of the banned left turn. It
should additionally be noted that, as TfL has already considered the City’s
request in detail, it is unlikely that this approach would be successful, although
political engagement has produced changes to some schemes in the past, such
as at Tudor Street.

20.Members should also be mindful that, in respect of the related works on the City’s
roads, if approval to the detailed design is withheld, it would be open to TfL to
implement the banned left turn into West Smithfield, without the works on the
City’s highway. This would probably require them to modify the design on their
network and would reduce the benefits, particularly for a better and safer cycle
interchange between the City’s Quietway and TfL’s Superhighway.

Page 59



Corporate & Strategic Implications

TfL’s proposal complements and aligns with many of the Corporation’s aims and
policy objectives. The proposals are also expected to address the high levels of
injury collisions involving cyclists at this junction.

Implications

21.1n order for TfL to effect the banned left turn, they are required to make an order
under s.6 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (RTRA).

22.Under section 122 of the same act, TfL as the traffic authority for Farringdon

Street must exercise its powers under the RTRA so as to secure the expeditious,
convenient and safe movement of vehicular and other traffic including
pedestrians, and the provision of suitable and adequate parking facilities on and
off the highway. These powers must be exercised so far as practicable having
regard to the following matters:-

a. the desirability of securing and maintaining reasonable access to

premises;

b. the effect on the amenities of any locality affected including the regulation
and restriction of heavy commercial traffic so as to preserve or improve
amenity;

c. the national air quality strategy;

d. facilitating the passage of public service vehicles and securing the safety
and convenience of their passengers;

e. any other matters appearing to TfL to be relevant.

23.The Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and Wales)
Regulations 1996 sets out requirements for things such as consultation,
publication of proposals, objections etc in relation to Traffic Orders. Under
regulation 6(1), it requires the order making authority where it is likely that their
order will affect traffic on a road for which another authority is the highway or
traffic authority, to consult the other authority.

24.Regulation 7(2) requires TfL to send the City the Notice of Proposals — including
other documents as part of the consultation is optional. Regulation 8(1) allows
objection to be made to proposals but regulation 8(2) which refers to objections
made by authorities under additional consultation rules set out in the Local
Government Act 1985 no longer applies within Greater London. Regulation 17(3)
requires the order making authority to notify parties that have objected under
regulation 8(1) that the order or orders have been made, and shall include the
reasons for not acceding to the objection either in part or in full.

25.The additional rules that apply to London authorities when consulting an affected
authority that require resolution of any objection before proceeding to make any
order or orders, and setting out an arbitration procedure if agreement is not
reached, do not apply to TfL when consulting an affected authority. TfL are

Page 60



required to consider any objection and then respond as set out in regulation
17(3).

26.1n order for TfL to deliver the changes on the City’s highway, the City’s approval
to the detailed design is required under the Cycle Superhighway s.8 (of the
Highways Act 1980) agreement, and to deliver the changes underneath Holborn
Viaduct, they will need to either amend or enter into a new s.8 agreement with
the City, to ensure that protection to the bridge is not adversely affected.

Conclusion

27.Following the resolution of this committee in December 2016, officers have
continued to engage with TfL to explore the possibility of a timed suspension of
the banned left turn into West Smithfield and for a better layout at the Stonecutter
Street junction.

28.TfL has considered the banned turn in detail and have concluded to proceed to
implementation of the banned turn, as consulted in November 2016. They have
however agreed to a new layout at Stonecutter Street, which appears to meet the
needs of local occupiers in this area.

29.To effect the banned turn, TfL must now make an order under the RTRA 1984
which requires them to carry out statutory public consultation. The City can object
to the banned left turn, but TfL can proceed to implement the banned left turn if
they have considered the objection. For works on the City’s highway, the City’s
approval of the design detail is required, but the banned left turn could proceed
without those works, although the benefits of the cycle interchange between the
City’s Quietway and TfL’s Cycle Superhighway would be reduced.

30.1t is believed that officer level discussions and negotiations with TfL have been
exhausted. It is now therefore suggested that, on balance, Members should
support TfL’'s proposal.

Appendices
e Appendix 1 — TfL’s latest proposals
e Appendix 2 — TfL’s Road Safety Audit
e Appendix 3 — TfL’s assessment of the lower traffic flows
e Appendix 4 — Summary of the traffic flows at the West Smithfield/Farringdon

Street junction

Background Papers
e Report of the Director of the Built Environment to the Planning &

Transportation and the Policy & Resources Committees in March 2016, and
the associated minutes. This can be viewed by following this link.

Page 61


http://vmtcapp12/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=395&MID=17672

e Report of the Director of the Built environment to the Markets Committee and
the Streets & Walkways Sub-Committee in November and December 2016,
and the associated minutes. This can be view by following this link.

Sam Lee
Group Manager, Department of the Built Environment

T:020 7332 1921
E: citytransportation@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 62


http://vmtcapp12/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=389&MID=17758

Public Document Pack

APPENDICES 1 TO 4 FOR NORTH - SOUTH CYCLE SUPERHIGHWAY PHASE 2

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 64



& FARRINGDON ST/
=]
> STONECUTTER ST
D
< REF: 00/000027
1. 2.
_'
E[\>l(|st|;19 bgy n710ved ;outh Third Party Scheme
(No stopping 7am - 7pm (The London Development Project)
Except loading max 20 mins or blue
Relocated Bus Shelter & flag badge holders max 3 hours)
LT W "—s| ,LL.. J v 1 —— J ‘ P . e W -
— 1] 2 8o
s 2
§ ;
o @ f
£ Jeem 1 : 1. 7
; ] L s \ g - T £a Sy B /]
é 7 M N
& 2L L A
- " O
A
é = o o 7
I 1 "
I ’ ’ I ’ I BUS 7o == L é
o D% SHELTER L
@) g PR | - 15.0m (:F)
o s | - o
L [j = ————— e = 3
L o T‘} o4
L o e uq & o LUl
e 3 S L
L 5 3 T
w | | — = &
S FARRINGDON STREET L
- o I —_— 3 L
0 _— -z a —
g g o
2| o = oS 3
T b Third party scheme vehicle holding area until 2018 L& §
> R B SO RRIIIIKKKLK =
= ) = EKKKKR —
[=— o = z 1 = C e N e SRR s
— — —3 —/ - > )i - XD S ~ - \ D B
¢ = = Z 12 5 <
- : e O : o s s = =
Ze (@) N : =
i 1 < b 3 5 =
g; e %o E % i //g/‘/ Sy @) E
= L 7] pal 2 x &
B § W@ -
2a
o S e S i ae?
R et I | | - =T i : ° — — - j[—-l — IJ ’_> » %L/
2a.0-5509 8384555010 23.3.0-5501 I 5 < m e p—
1 / z! g
q) 1
R = g A
(7] ~ P72 ~ @D ]
8 o S o =
s s B g &
5 x S x Battered kerb for 8 N
5 9 3 9 i s o
g o 2 N N access to parking bay 2 g9
Taxi ranking (24 hours) , 2 s 0 = S oa
o No stopping 7am- 7pm except blue badge holders S cx 2 2 o S =
5 ‘6 S 2 o S o0 = =W
- e == 2 <= E5%
. s © = © S O
m S5 X% 8 50 2ea
) S 28 228 5 &5
o = 8o — B o  Solomotorcycle = 2o
Z - L @’ L e i
A4 Legible London Totem = parking (24 hours)
% Q
= I B
o
= X
=
=
m
<
NOTES .
Road Markings to be Removed ]  Proposed flush area Proposed Bus Stop flag 1. Alldesigns to be in accordance with TfL and appropriate '+ Proposed traffic signal positions are indicative only - THESE DRAWINGS DO NOT SHOW THE FULL Transport for London Road Space Management
_ _ ' : , ; and are subject to detailed signal design. Surface Transport|  Outcomes Design Engineering
. Street fumiture to be removed ~ *=—=CS  Proposed Sheffield cycle stand e&  Proposed bollard Highway Authority Streetscape Guidance. ; - - DETAIL OF THE PROPOSED SCHEME.
2. Alllining and signing to be in accordance with the current 12 Recessed covers to be considered for inspection
—— Kerb/Tactile to be removed = Proposed sign face (refer to o Proposed wand Traffic Signs Regulations and General Directions chambers within areas of tactile paving. g
_ signage drawings) - (TSRGD). Assess carriageway condition at detailed design ~ DRAINAGE INVESTIGATION AND DESIGN IS i
— Retained Infrasfructure 51 p 4 bus shel . Proposed ramp 3. Alldimensions in metres, unless otherwise stated. stage. . , , TO BE UNDERTAKEN AT DETAILED DESIGN. SE18N
Proposed Road Markings roposed bus shelter Blue Surfacing 4. Al signs to be mounted on existing lighting columns / Re-lnsta.te existing road markings adjacent to kerb
e b , TLRN Boundary - , sign posts where possible (subject to structural and carriageway works. o
i 2 2 . Proposed red lines Intermediate Level Cycle Track assessment) 5. Changes to drainage are subject to detail design. TRAFFIC SIGNAL LOCATIONS ARE scheme
s . £ 2 2, _ D CGullyistat affected by proposals Footway Level Cycle Track 5. Signs on footway to be mounted at a height to ensurea 6. Drawing based on topographical survey provided by - INDICATIVE. PLEASE REFER TO TRAFFIC
g £ = = 47%7 Proposed yellow lines ez Suface dressing to mateh Trief kerb Level Cycle Track minimum vertical clearance of 2.3m to bottom of sign Sunhill . o SIGNALS DRAWINGS CYCLE SUPERHIGHWAY
= g = JU[ %, p d transition kerb b otwav t where cycling is permitted on the footway, elsewhere to  17. All existing gullies to be retained in cycle track / lane ' NORTH-SOUTH ROUTE (CSG) - PHASE 2
i C o\ suokmReRsRo 4 BLACKFRIARS BRIGE €. LUDGATE CIRCUS roposed transition ker Ootway tone Potential tree pit 21m. to be converted to 'cycle friendly’ CONCEPT DESIGN
AT A ] B AN [/ — e Proposed dropped kerb ¢ Proposed lighting column (TEC) bronosed backless bench Al signs to have a minimur horizontal clearance of ~ 18. Statutory Undertakers equipment that has been THE TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY OF
I 8 T T 1 9 | i eroposd kb —  Signface to be removed (refer to foposec backless benc 450mm from face of trafficked kerb. ':_e;lt_'f'ﬁf g?tegt'a"y a;ferctfd by thet, Scth_emehhasl dbge“ FARRINGDON STREET BETWEEN PROPOSED ROUTE - DRAWING 21 OF 27
@ (:H (:) 14) K @ @ ' @ signage drawings i 7. Allsignal heads to be mounted at a height to ensure a Ighlighted In brown. Further investigation should be
5 & Proposed trief kerb Prgo Ogsed san golt (eferto = Proposed bench wih back minimum vertical clearance of 2.3m to bottom of signal made at Detailed Design. SICLECUTER SRR ARV EIES date scale dn_| chk | app
2 & Proposed CS cycle logo s . npa 5 drag 'nps) Bin,, Proposed bin head where cycling is permitted on the footway. 19. Al signal controller locations to be assessed at point  SMITHFIELD CONTAINS UNVERIFIED 14317 1200@A1 | JMG cG HA
5 § 'gnag I g L _ . _ All existing signs & lines to be retained unless otherwise of signal audit. AS-BUIILT DRAWINGS. ACCURACY CHECKS Dwa N°
z S Proposed red tactile paving +—5 Proposed traffic signal (indicative == = == Proposed raised delineator strip stated. 20. Al ramp lengths to b dictaed by existing/ proposed o131 ) BE CARRIED OUT BEFORE wg rev
N e Proposed charcoal tactle paving locations) o _ Proposed legible London totem 9.  Critical dimensions to be checked at detailed design kerb heights PJ512C-RSM-PRD-ZZ-DR-TE-01-21 C
Pronosed footwav buildoutfisland m™° Proposed traffic signals equipment stage. 21, Allkerbs within cycle track are to be splayed (45°) DETAILED DESIGN COMMENCES SHEET 2 OF 2 (F|NA|_ DESlGN)
P y (indicative locations) 10.  Lighting to be assessed at detailed design stage where cycle track is at carriageway level rev | date [details | ek | app G cronn copyrigntand detabase g 2011 Ordnance Survey 100035671

S:\TDE\Scheme Information\All Areas\North — South Route\Drawings\PHASE 2 CAD\PJ512C—RSM—PRD-ZZ-DR-TE-01 Rev B (Sheets 21-28).dwg.




No stopping
Except 10am-4pm taxis only

Tpm-midnight taxis only

midnight - 7am loading max 20 mins

reaks in raised delineator for
wheelchair/loading access

Third Party Scheme
(The London Development Project)

City of London Bollard to be relocated
To be agreed with City of London.

For indicative cross section please
PJ512C-RSM-P5D-ZZ—DR-TE-01-28

refer to drawing no.

3
|

FOR CONTINUATION PLEASE REFER TO SHEET 23 OF 27

Ty

[ —
- ) =]
7 L4
< o o £
-] e T L
A £ S I
- "‘;"’«?‘9 g I i ~
— 1 v ’ 7% L e
e ’ “// /?
W T
Y .
T
w XAA/\,VVVYXXX)(X
g O §
— |_ =
=
L o
m 3
v
= —  I— — N
9} o
< Y o 3
'E'iJ 3 3 0.3m “ oo E— —
= N 7 § ¢ : 5
%] Z 4 — = S 3
s 9 5 :,\ 3 L o —_
(S ':: —— — =
® 5 & \j‘»// 7 = =022 . =® °-» T35 —, —
Q) Z ~1 -~ E L B AR — S £
b = - LT
e 5 ] -" S
SR , . el o : : -/ -
= 1\.!10 O~ 0 é’ = b __[m m'ﬂ\ S5m \ MS&* - - 2 = fo & — ng E
I~ N o E] - y § Fl
8 {|~7 go s ] %’ng| - =R I UM [T] ¢ ,;§ © g g .
_ s g £ 2 = wa
g = g s < :
g o g AN & @ ]
H § X 7 T =1 ||-l_J =
i} ) ) BEAE7 R . P s 2l Y -
Tefee [ secse : o ”ﬁ sya0-ssu0 \ S A it — — I I 3 N / fg
T — L e/
\j \r . S g =) § ;
Battered kerb for s B 2=3
i s & S5% City of London lighting column t =
access to parking bay g2 9 $5S ity of London lighting column to :
L 3 2 oW - s
Taxi ranking (24 hours) A E‘: g B b_e reloc_ated. Qomblne with traffic i }5’ 3.1m 3.3m | [|KS
Solo motorcvel 8 2x L 2 signals if feasible. To be agreed
an 010 motorcycle S g’“.— ith City of London duri
= parking (24 hours) ~Solo motorcycle e €= | with City of London during
2 - parking (24 hours) g5 Passively safe bollards. Detailed Design
2 No stopping 7am - 7pm S 2 & T Bollard specification is to be confirmed
rl; Battered kerb f Except |Oad|ng max 20 mins or blue g Hqt, § |ndllcatlve dralnage channel. Full
o attered kerb for badge holders max 3 hours @ a drainage assessment to be undertaken |
) access to parking bay at detailed design Flush area to be contrasting
m colour to carriageway and have
suitable PSV value for cyclists 4
S
&
&
V
$ ¢
& z
Road Markings to be Removed 1  Proposed flush area Proposed Bus Stop flag 1. Al designs to be in accordance with TiL and appropriate 1. :rr]%p;rseeg uttr)T;fci?tf)igdnee;;ﬁgzitsi?gnns;;z isr;gri]cative only  THESE DRAWINGS DO NOT SHOW THE FULL SuTrr:;st;n Tf_orr ;;n;;nort 05;?’:1 25%?3 ig:;%m:z; :
Street furniture to be removed ~ =—=CS  Proposed Sheffield cycle stand e&  Proposed bollard Highway Authority Streetscape Guidance. , o DETAIL OF THE PROPOSED SCHEME.
2. Alllining and signing to be in accordance with the current 12 Recessed covers to be considered for inspection
Kerb / Tactile to be removed = Proposed sign face (refer to oV Proposed wand Traffic Signs Regulations and General Directions chambers within areas of tacfile paving. Palestra
' signage drawings) 7 bronosed (TSRGD). 13. Assess carriageway condition at detailed design  DRAINAGE INVESTIGATION AND DESIGN IS 197 Blackitars Road
Retained Infrastructure s P Jbus shel VA foposea ramp 3. Alldimensions in metres, unless otherwise stated. stage. » _ , TO BE UNDERTAKEN AT DETAILED DESIGN. SE18NJ
proposed Road Markings roposed bus shelter Blue Surfacing 4. Allsigns to be mounted on existing lighting columns / 14, Re-mstalte existing road markings adjacent to kerb
- o TLRN Boundary o , sign posts where possible (subject to structural and carriageway works. o
g : = 3 Proposed red lines geezsesd  Intermediate Level Cycle Track assessmen) 5. Changes to drainage are subject to detail design. TRAFFIC SIGNAL LOCATIONS ARE scheme
5 B E g o _ L1 Guly/stat affected by proposals Footway Level Cycle Track 5. Signs on footway to be mounted at a height to ensurea 16 Drawing based on topographical survey provided by - INDICATIVE. PLEASE REFER TO TRAFFIC
& ES = = KX Proposed yellow lines Surface dressina o match Trief kerb Level Cycle Track minimum vertical clearance of 2.3m to bottom of sign Sunhil SIGNALS DRAWINGS CYCLE SUPERHIGHWAY
j“g < = @ %, . ] g where cycling is permitted on the footway, elsewhere to  17. Al existing gullies to be retained in cycle track / lane ' NORTH-SOUTH ROUTE (CS6) - PHASE 2
3 I TG ROAD % } . BLACKFRIARS BRIDGE €% LUDGATE CIRCUS Proposed transition kerb . footway tohe | Potential tree pit 21m. to be converted to 'cycle friendly’ CONCEPT DESIGN
(NI A\ , '] I N — N i Proposed dropped kerb ¢ Proposed lighting column (TBC) 5 4 backless bench 6. All'signs to have a minimum horizontal clearance of 18.  Statutory Undertakers equipment that has been THE TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY OF
! R . — = i . Cs=1  Proposed backless benc : identif i
AL @ﬁ @ ~ @ D ) eroposed e ~  Signfacetoberemoved (referto - - do0m fom faos ofeffced e, gt ot Fotor rvostontiometon e, ARRINGDON STREET BETWEEN PROPOSED ROUTE - DRAWING 22 OF 27
N signage drawings - : signal heads to be mounted at a height to ensure a :
e f Proposed trief kerb Pgo ) 4 sian golt for to Tmry Proposed bench with back minimum vertical clearance of 2.3m to bottom of signal made at Detailed Design. STONECUTTER STREET AND WEST date scale drn chk app
/ & proposed CS cyce ogo Wy I Posed ign post (refer Bin, Proposed bin head where cycling is permitted on the footway. 19.  All signal controller locations to be assessed at point  SMITHFIELD CONTAINS UNVERIFIED 14317 1200@A1 | JMG cG HA
z &§ signage drawings) - 8. Alexisting signs & lines to be retained unless otherwise of signal audit, AS-BUIILT DRAWINGS. ACCURACY CHECKS SN —
5 N Proposed red tactile paving +—5= Proposed traffic signal (indicafive = = = Proposed raised defineator strip stated. 20, Alamp lenghs fo be ictted by existng/ proposed 15111’ 6= CARBIED OUT BEFORE wg RS
N Proposed charcoal tactie paving locations) =  Proposed legible London totem 9 Critical dimensions to be checked at detailed design kerb heights PJ512C-RSM-PRD-ZZ-DR-TE-01-22 C
Proposed footway buildoutisand @B 0posed traffic signals equipment stage. 21, All kerbs within cycle track are to be splayed (45°) ~ DETAILED DESIGN COMMENCES SHEET 2 OF 2 (FINAL DESIGN)
roposed footway buiidoutisian (indicative locations) 10.  Lighting to be assessed at detailed design stage where cycle track is at carriageway level rev | date [details | chk | app [ ©Grown copyrgntand atabase rgts 2011 Oranance Survey 10003597+

S:\TDE\Scheme Information\All Areas\North — South Route\Drawings\PHASE 2 CAD\PJ512C—RSM-PRD-ZZ-DR-TE-01 Rev B (Sheets 21-28).dwg.



\\
\ \

SNOW HILL / WEST SMITHFIELD

VAN

y

FARRINGDON ST T~ FOR CONTINUATION SEE INSET b

REF: TBC

No stopping
Except 10am-4pm taxis only

Tpm-midnight taxis only
midnight - 7am loading max 20 mins

S

Filter

]

Filter %-

S

= N

CCTV Camera to be relocated.
Proposed location is indicative. 1t
Exact location to be confirmed during

detailed design with asset owner

—
oo

%' T

—
oo

reaks in raised delineator for

- i
%) i

g
=
i

2
%
Q
7
m
!
Y

y
4 3!

2

2.0m

Bupnny

Lighting column to be relocated. Combine with
traffic signal poles where feasible. Lighting
assessment to be undertaken at detailed design

Proposals within green
dashed line differ between
interim and final layouts

h

N~
AN
L
O
N
AN
|_
L
L
T
%)
O i
5 ried \ G
L wheelchair/loading access A 2.9
' \ A0
\ 2
ul - \\ / g ;
< R = Y r
I&'J é ; Relocate Bus Shelter \\\ 3 \ Early release cycle scl:NSE-Too
[ o \
% % Q / Lighting column to be relocated \\ 3 \
= » N / and combined with traffic signals. \ = \\
< 2 s A / . \ N
S —— 38 € x| Lighting assessment to be \
c o / . : \
Z o £ = / undertaken at detailed design
[ +— =2 2D /
Z S50 /
O = o 8 / \\
%r) E S o // \\
L e N\
8 \—_/___d:J // \\
() / N
‘_LI_ U L—] i L //’ \
. /
; 5 ] $o ', 7 /3 NRT
g 37 . C 5] ' & | 3 “ I%?(LSE
o [ e I w0 P — — v = — P (0 © LT in 2 stage
T T T e T T T ‘E’ﬁ JLipD %a | I T = T~ L — =1 3 — T A
BB s A I e ) = . s <1 sl /]
——— — S — — é\)) — o ~
20 @%7 T g — = FEER F T BENENENENEN
- 7 9] T T 1] ¥ RS St D P G A&
ozl za. A — NN h b
. .
. 27.0 T —_—
) £ ,!/ m £ ’!/ *
V. :\ & e
IR N AO Z £ o o
©o " M <]
3 " 27.7m 3 )
— § i N 0 £ T g
: 4\ A0 §
— \
— H3ILTIHS
D L / ~ |'i'||||'|'|'||"|'|""1“' 1 IIEIIllllllllllil;|-|'1'|'.l.|lllll|||
e NRT e N THI e AR HERHR AR HHHHHHTHHEHITHHN a
= ,,, aa - Sg i o g - / -
mr \ . 4 N
' s pow e I ] [ = ) == = = ua
! \ | — | — / |
| ' \ /
CE). i o H ~ /o \\ .
s A é’% h CCTV Camera to be relocated. \ Relocated City of London Dragon
AL I~ . SEPUT . \
City of London lighting columnto ‘ml @% (% f ) ::’ropigse? Igcat|onf.|s m?zahye. Exact \
be relocated. Combine with traffic {g SRMEm T e > \ ocation fo be coniirmed during N
signals if feasible. To be agreed ’/ (w G\ detailed design with asset owner
with City of London during i Relocate Bus Shelter
Detailed Design I @% (No advertising panel to improve Raised delineator either side of cycle Blue surface dressing across junction
/ I 05 I t intervisibilty) track where it is flush with footway
Flush area o be contrasting 5:! |
colour to carriageway and have y : A /\ CHARTERHOUSE ST/ FARRINGDON RD
suitable PSV value for cyclists e FARRINGDON ST
,\—J REF: 02/000025
1 2. C

Il w

FOR CONTINUATION PLEASE REFER TO SHEET 24 OF 27

\

| L

AV

3 4
Early release cycle signal
< F J_ J_ _Q_Q_Q_l I
—| E _I _l
= — —
m
A A -
Z B B
=\
3 T T D T
ff\
\f/r\/
(@
i NOTES iC Si iti indicati ransport for London
Road Markings to be Removed [ Proposed fiush area Proposed Bus Stop flag 1. All designs to be in accordance with TL and appropriate 11~ Proposed traffic signal positions are indicative only - THESE DRAWINGS DO NOT SHOW THE FULL fransportfortond Road Space Management
. Street furniture to be removed s Proposed Sheffield cycle stand B Proposed bollard Highway Authority Streetscape Guidance and are subject o detailed signal design. DETAIL OF THE PROPOSED SCHEME Surface Transport|  Outcomes Design Engineering
*—8 . . X g . .
2. Allining and signing to be in accordance with the current 12 Recessed covers to be considered for inspection
S — Kerb/Tactile to be removed = Proposed sign face (refer to o' Proposed wand Traffic Signs Regulations and General Directions chambers within areas of tactile paving. g
@‘*0 Retained Infrastruct signage drawings) <7 b ’ (TSRGD). 13.  Assess carriageway condition at detailed design DRAINAGE INVESTIGATION AND DESIGN IS aLondZns a
s slaied infrasiructure - -~ foposed ramp 3. Alldimensions in metres, unless otherwise stated. stage. - _ . TO BE UNDERTAKEN AT DETAILED DESIGN. SE1 6N
& proposed Road Mrkings Proposed bus shelter Blue Surfacing 4. Allsigns to be mounted on existing lighting columns / Re(;msta‘te existing rolfd markings adjacent to kerb
.@ m t . sign posts where possible (subject to structural and carriageway works.
& o £ 2 Proposed red lines TLRN Boundary gezzzess  Intermediate Level Cycle Track asgsegsmem) P ) 15.  Changes to drainage are subject to detail design. ~ TRAFFIC SIGNAL LOCATIONS ARE scheme
& £ g K O Gullystat affected by proposals Footway Level Cycle Track 5. Signs on footway to be mounted at a height to ensure @ 16- Drawing based on topographical survey provided by  IND|CATIVE. PLEASE REFER TO TRAFFIC
7 g kS : = % Proposed yellow lines ; Trief kerb Level Cycle Track minimum vertical clearance of 2.3m to bottom of sign Sunhill CYCLE SUPERHIGHWAY
2 g & = ” % R Surface dressing to match reTHemb Leve Lyl Trae ing i i ' 17. Al existing gullies to be retained in cycle track / lane SIGNALS DRAWINGS.
2 il \  sickRersRon i BLACKFRIARS BRIDGE % LUDGATE GIRCUS Proposed transition kerb " footway tone Potential tree it ;/qere cycling is permitted on the footway, elsewhereto '/ b con\?egt o0 1o oyl Hendly Y NORTH-SOUTH ROUTE (CSG) - PHASE 2
° ] - . 1L y 2 o otential tree pi Am.
NI B | S 18 S Y AR propased dropped kerb " Proposed lighing cou (TBC) oo b Al signs o have a minimum horizontal cearance of 18, Stautory Undertakers equipment thathas been  THE TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY OF CONCEPT DESIGN
[ f—'ﬁ I = —~ v . [Csear ] 3 i ifi i
v ; - Sign face to b d (refer t 450mm from face of trafficked kerb. identified potentially affected by the scheme has been )
@ @ @‘ 14 T £ @ W Proposed kerbs silgg:asg?jrgwi?]grg;n oved (referto =N Pronosed bench with back 7. Allsignal heads to be mounted at a height to ensure a highlighted in brown. Further investigation should be FARRINGDON STREET BETWEEN PROPOSED ROUTE - DRAWING 23 OF 27
m & Proposed trief kerb p dsi { (refert P minimum vertical clearance of 2.3m to bottom of signal made at Detailed Design. STONECUTTER STREET AND WEST date scale drn chk | app
& & proposed CS cycle logo s .roposed3|gr.1 post (refer to Bing, Proposed bin head where cycling is permitted on the footway. 19, All signal controller locations to be assessed at point  SMITHFIELD CONTAINS UNVERIFIED 141317 1200@A1 | MG G HA
5 S signage rawmgs) o 8. Allexisting signs & lines to be retained unless otherwise of signal audit. AS-BUIILT DRAWINGS. ACCURACY CHECKS 5
A proposed charcoal tactle paving locations) o | = Proposedlegible Londontotem O Crical dimensions to be checked at detailed design kerb heights PJ512C-RSM-PRD-ZZ-DR-TE-01-23 C
Pronosed footway buildoutisland. @ - roposed traffic signals equipment stage. 21, All kerbs within cycle track are to be splayed (45°) ~ DETAILED DESIGN COMMENCES SHEET 1 OF 2 (INTERIM DESIGN)
P y (indicative locations) 10.  Lighting to be assessed at detailed design stage where cycle track is at carriageway level rev | date (O Crown copyright and database rghts 2011 Ordnance Survey 10003597 1

S:\TDE\Scheme Information\All Areas\North — South Route\Drawings\PHASE 2 CAD\PJ512C—RSM-PRD-ZZ-DR-TE-01 Rev B (Sheets 21-28).dwg.




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 68



Appendix 2

Transport for London

CS North-South Cycle Route (Phase 2)
TfL Proposals (Rev 2B.1/ 2C)

Stage 1 Road Safety Audit

Ref: 2462.01/000/A201/TLRN/2016

Prepared for:

Sponsorship, TfL Road Space Management Directorate

By:
Road Safety Audit, TfL Asset Management Directorate

Prepared by: I A udit Team Leader
Checked by: B ~udit Team Member
poproveaty: N

Version Status Date
A Audit report issued to Client 27/10/2016

MAYOR OF LONDON
Page 69 Transport for London e



CS North-South Cycle Route (Phase 2), TfL Proposals (Rev 2B.1/2C)
Stage 1 Road Safety Audit Report

1.0
11
1.1.1

1.2
1.2.1

1.2.2

1.2.3

1.2.4

1.2.5

1.2.6

INTRODUCTION
Commission

This report results from a Stage 1 Road Safety Audit carried out on the Cycle
Superhighway (CS) North-South Cycle Route (Phase 2), TfL Proposals (Rev 2B.1/
2C) proposals.

The Audit was undertaken by TfL Road Safety Audit in accordance with the Audit
Brief issued by the Client Organisation on 13" October 2016. It took place at the
Palestra offices of TfL on 25" October 2016 and comprised an examination of the
documents provided as listed in Appendix A, plus a visit to the site of the proposed
scheme.

The visit to the site of the proposed scheme was made on 25" October 2016. During
the site visit the weather was overcast and the existing road surface was dry.

Terms of Reference

The Terms of Reference of this Audit are as described in TfL Procedure SQA-0170
dated May 2014. The Audit Team has examined and reported only on the road safety
implications of the scheme as presented and how it impacts on all road users and
has not examined or verified the compliance of the designs to any other criteria.
However, to clearly explain a safety problem or the recommendation to resolve a
problem the Audit Team may, on occasion, have referred to a design standard
without touching on technical audit. An absence of comment relating to specific road
users / modes in Section 3 of this report does not imply that they have not been
considered; instead the Audit Team feels they are not adversely affected by the
proposed changes.

This Safety Audit is not intended to identify pre-existing hazards which remain
unchanged due to the proposals; hence they will not be raised in Section 3 of this
report as they fall outside the remit of Road Safety Audit in general as specified in the
procedure SQA-0170 dated May 2014. Safety issues identified during the Audit and
site visit that are considered to be outside the Terms of Reference, but which the
Audit Team wishes to draw to the attention of the Client Organisation, are set out in
Section 4 of this report.

Nothing in this Audit should be regarded as a direct instruction to include or remove a
measure from within the scheme. Responsibility for designing the scheme lies with
the Designer and as such the Audit Team accepts no design responsibility for any
changes made to the scheme as a result of this Audit.

In accordance with TfL Procedure SQA-0170 dated May 2014, this Audit has a
maximum shelf life of 2 years. If the scheme does not progress to the next stage in
its development within this period, then the scheme should be re-audited.

Unless general to the scheme, all comments and recommendations are referenced to
the detailed design drawings and the locations have been indicated on the plan
located in Appendix B.

It is the responsibility of the Design Organisation to complete the Designer’s
response section of this Audit report. Where applicable and necessary it is the
responsibility of the Client Organisation to complete the Client comment section of
this Audit report. Signatures from both the Design Organisation and Client
Organisation must be added within Section 5 of this Audit report. A copy of which
must be returned to the Audit Team.

Audit Ref. 2462.01/000/A201/TLRN/2016
Date: 27/10/2016 Page 70

Version: A



CS North-South Cycle Route (Phase 2), TfL Proposals (Rev 2B.1/2C)
Stage 1 Road Safety Audit Report

1.3 Main Parties to the Audit
1.3.1 Client Organisation

Client contact details: I - L Sponsorship

1.3.2 Design Organisation

Design contact details: I - i Outcomes Design Engineering
1.3.3 Audit Team

Audit Team Leader: I - i Road Safety Audit

Audit Team Member: B - 7. Road Safety Audit

Audit Team Observer: None present
1.3.4 Other Specialist Advisors

Specialist Advisor Details:  None present

1.4  Purpose of the Scheme

1.4.1 The purpose of the scheme is to extend the Cycle Superhighway North-South Route
from Stonecutter Street to Ray Street*.

*Taken directly from the Audit Brief.

1.5 Special Considerations

1.5.1  The Audit Team has no special considerations to raise.

Audit Ref: 2462.01/000/A201/TLRN/2016 Page 71

Date: 27/10/2016 Version: A



CS North-South Cycle Route (Phase 2), TfL Proposals (Rev 2B.1/2C)
Stage 1 Road Safety Audit Report

2.0 ITEMS RAISED IN PREVIOUS ROAD SAFETY AUDITS

A previous iteration of the proposals were subject to a Stage 1 Road Safety Audit in
January 2016 by TfL Road Safety Audit (ref: 2462/VAR/A201/TLRN/2016). The
design has been updated, and hence this Audit is not considered relevant to the
revised proposals. Problems raised in this Audit that are also evident in the revised
proposals have been raised again as part of this Stage 1 Road Safety Audit.

Audit Ref: 2462.01/000/A201/TLRN/2016
Page 72 Version: A

Date: 27/10/2016



CS North-South Cycle Route (Phase 2), TfL Proposals (Rev 2B.1/ 2C)
Stage 1 Road Safety Audit Report

3.0

3.1
3141

ITEMS RAISED AT THIS STAGE 1 ROAD SAFETY AUDIT

This section should be read in conjunction with Paragraphs 1.2.1, 1.2.2 and 1.2.3 of
this report.

CYCLE FACILITIES
PROBLEM
Location: General to scheme, multiple locations

Summary: Hybrid track design may pose a hazard to cyclists and riders of other
two wheeled vehicles

The Audit Team is concerned that a hybrid track is proposed with the provision of a
small upstand from the carriageway. It is assumed that the track will not be provided
in colour, to be consistent with the remainder of the north-south cycle route. As a
result the hybrid track may have little differentiation from the adjacent carriageway
and may appear to be a consistent surface at a similar level. Cyclists and riders of
other two wheeled vehicles in particular may fail to appreciate the presence of the
kerb upstand, with an exacerbated potential to become unseated and an associated
potential for injury as a result.

RECOMMENDATION

Ensure the hybrid track is adequately visible to all road users. This may require but is
not limited to, the provision of additional road markings to define the edge of the
carriageway and the use of a different surface material and/or colour.

Design Organisation Response Rejected

Rejected: The double red line ‘no stopping’ restrictions highlight to users where the
edge of carriageway is, and at the edge of carriageway users are accustomed to a
kerb height. 50mm kerb heights are increasingly common across London especially
in busy high street contexts and along existing CS routes such as CS7 at Kennington
Oval, confusion has not been raised as an issue. Cycle logos are provided at 50m
intervals along the cycle track and the kerb will have a colour contrast with the cycle
track material.

A potential point of confusion could have been at the start of the hybrid (or stepped)
cycle track. However, it is proposed that a triangular ramp marking (diag1062), a
cycle logo, a retro-reflective yellow wand and tapered road markings on the
approach to direct other traffic away from the stepped track will highlight the
presence of the track and level change. The design team therefore feels that the
proposed measures ensure the cycle track is sufficiently conspicuous so as not to
pose the hazards raised by the audit.

Client Organisation Comments

Agree with the designer’s response. Double red lines will be present along the
majority of the edge of the carriageway parallel to the cycle track as well as a kerb
edge in a contrasting colour. This is consistent with visual definition of a footway
alongside a carriageway. Cycle logos in the track will provide further additional visual
indication that the there is a cycle track beyond the edge of the kerb.

Audit Ref. 2462 01/000/A201/ TLRN/2016
Date: 27/10/2016 Page 73

Version: A



Page 74



CS North-South Cycle Route (Phase 2), TfL Proposals (Rev 2B.1/ 2C)
Stage 1 Road Safety Audit Report

wide, narrowing them further would mean cyclists would be unable to ride two-
abreast or overtake, which could discourage cyclists from using the dedicated cycle
track in favour of the general traffic lane where provisions for cyclists have not been
accommodated. The traffic lanes are already as narrow at 3m. For these reasons,
the segregation strip is consistently narrow throughout the link.

Also, any increase in the lateral clearance between the wand and vehicles either side
would reduce the physical space for those vehicles. It is recommended that the
wands specified at detailed design are of a height below handlebars and wing
mirrors to mitigate against striking. It should be noted that the wands are self-
correcting.

It is recommended that visibility of the kerb edge is bolstered by retro-reflective paint
at the detailed design stage.

Client Organisation Comments

Agree with the designer’s response. Segregation will be adequately visible to
approaching road users by means of retro-reflective wands, cycle logos on the cycle
track side and double red lines on the carriageway side. The standard lateral
clearance of 45mm is not proposed for vertical features such as this would require
narrowing of the cycle lane leading to a reduced level of service for cyclists. The
vertical wands are proposed to be self-correcting to reduce the impact of any strikes.

Audit Ref: 2462.01/000/A201/TLRN/2016 Page 75

Date: 27/10/2016 Version: A



CS North-South Cycle Route (Phase 2), TfL Proposals (Rev 2B.1/ 2C)
Stage 1 Road Safety Audit Report

3.2
3.21

POWERED TWO WHEELERS
PROBLEM
Location: General to scheme, multiple locations

Summary: Use of battered kerbs to access solo motorcycle bays may pose a
hazard to powered two wheeler riders

It is proposed to provide battered kerbs for powered two wheelers to cross the cycle
track and access the parking bay. The Audit Team are concerned that riders of
powered two wheeled vehicles may attempt to access the parking bay at an acute
angle, and the presence of the battered kerb may destabilise the rider. An
exacerbated potential for the rider to become unseated, with an associated potential
for personal injury may exist as a result.

RECOMMENDATION

Provide a smoother transition for powered two wheelers to access the parking bay.
This may require the provision of a conventional dropped kerb or other similar
measure.

Design Organisation Response Part-accepted

Part-accepted: The current proposals show an angled 300mm wide kerb with a
50mm upstand. The pre-consultation drawings proposed a 150mm wide half battered
kerb which would have been more severe for P2W to cross. The use of 150mm wide
kerbs was raised in audit Ref: 2462/VAR/A201/TLRN/2016 and the design was
amended.

Additionally the design team anticipate that P2W users will slow down before
attempting to cross the kerbs as they will be turning across a cycle track into a
parking bay where they will become stationary. The design team are concerned that
too shallow a gradient could encourage P2W users to cross the track at a high speed
reducing their visibility of oncoming cyclists. TfL’s Motorcycle guidance document is
not specific on appropriate gradients for P2W, however it states that a 1 in 5 gradient
at a raised side road entry treatment ‘can cause issues for motorcyclists’. However, it
is anticipated that P2W would have to approach a side road entry treatments at a
higher speed in order to continue their onward journey. Side road entry treatments
are recommended at TLRN side road junctions as part of TfL’s Streetscape
Guidance.

An example of the angled kerbs is shown in the image below. These have a gradient
of 1 in 6 because the whole kerb is angled rather than just the edge battered. This
type of solution will be recommended to the detailed designers.

Audit Ref. 2462 01/000/A201/ TLRN/2016
Date: 27/10/2016 Page 76

Version: A



Page 77



CS North-South Cycle Route (Phase 2), TfL Proposals (Rev 2B.1/ 2C)
Stage 1 Road Safety Audit Report

3.3 TRAFFIC SIGNALS
3.3.1 PROBLEM
Location: General to scheme, multiple locations
Summary:  Traffic signal locations may not be immediately visible to cyclists

The proposals require cyclists to adopt a carriageway position away from the normal
primary stop-line at the two stage right turns. Encouraging cyclists to adopt this
position may mean they are located in front or away from the primary traffic signal,
relying heavily on the visibility of the secondary traffic signal to decide when to
progress.

The absence of primary traffic signal visibility may lead to cyclists failing to appreciate
when it is safe to continue, with an exacerbated potential for conflict as a result. This
is particularly the case if the secondary traffic signal is obscured or not operational.

RECOMMENDATION

Ensure cyclists are located in a position to observe the primary traffic signals for the
manoeuvre they wish to undertake. If this cannot be achieved it may be beneficial to
provide additional cycle specific traffic signals at the position they are most likely to
be observed.

Design Organisation Response Rejected

Rejected: Findings from the TfL trials outlined that the optimal position for the signal
for two-stage turns is a far sided secondary signal. This layout has already been
applied at many other junctions across London within the Cycle Superhighway and
Better Junction programmes and is continued on CSNS for consistency.

Client Organisation Comments

Agree with the designer’s response. The London Cycling Design Standards (LCDS)
describe requirements for formal two stage turns based on guidance contained in
SQA0651 developed following the trial layout.

This states that:

e an early release for cyclists in the ahead waiting area should be provided by
a far-sided secondary signal;

e these cyclists must have a clear-sighted view of this [far sided] signal, which
should not therefore be a low-level signal head, with a 200mm green cycle
aspect as the forth aspect;

e the secondary signal must turn green at the same time as the low-level cycle
signal for early release for cyclists waiting behind the stop line.

These principles are proposed for the two-stage turns in this scheme.

3.3.2 PROBLEM
Location: A — Farringdon Street junction with West Smithfield

Summary:  Traffic signals may be masked for northbound drivers by proximity of
loading / disabled bay

The Audit Team are concerned that a vehicle located within the loading bay on the
west side of the junction may restrict forward visibility to any nearside traffic signal.

Audit Ref: 2462.01/000/A201/TLRN/2016
Date: 27/10/2016 Pagp 78 Version: A



CS North-South Cycle Route (Phase 2), TfL Proposals (Rev 2B.1/ 2C)
Stage 1 Road Safety Audit Report

Northbound drivers may fail to appreciate the necessity to stop at this location, or
react late upon a traffic signal coming into view. An exacerbated potential for drivers
to enter the junction injudiciously, with a resultant potential for side-swipe or shunt
type conflicts may exist as a result.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that appropriate forward visibility to the nearside traffic signal is
provided. This may require the relocation or reduction in length of the loading /
disabled bay.

Design Organisation Response Accepted

Accepted: An offside island and primary traffic signal are now included in the
concept design. This will increase the forward visibility of the traffic signals. There will
also be a far sided secondary signal on the southern side of the pedestrian refuge
island.

There are no other suitable locations for the bay to be relocated to and it is required
by the businesses under the viaduct. As further mitigation the proposed controls of
the bay will prevent vehicles from using it at peak times to ensure visibility of the
nearside signal is maintained when traffic flows are highest. During the hours when
the bay can be used it will be restricted to taxis between 10am and 4pm and 7pm —
midnight. Between the hours of midnight - 7am loading and unloading will be
permitted. The benefit of this arrangement is that it ensure high sided vehicles will
only ever be permitted to use the bay during night time hours when traffic flows are
lower.

Client Organisation Comments

Agree with the designer’s response.

3.4 PARKING AND LOADING FACILITIES
3.41 PROBLEM
Location: B — Farringdon Street opposite West Smithfield
Summary: Loading bay location may hamper visibility for pedestrians and cyclists

The Audit Team is concerned that the location proposed loading / disabled bay may
restrict visibility to / from pedestrians and cyclists. The pedestrian and cycle facilities
are located immediately downstream of the bay, hence any vehicle located within the
bay is likely to impact on the visibility to / from these facilities. Pedestrians and
cyclists may fail to appreciate when it is safe to proceed due to the reduced visibility,
entering the carriageway injudiciously. Pedestrians and cyclists entering the
carriageway injudiciously may be at an exacerbated potential for conflict with
vehicles.

RECOMMENDATION

Increase the visibility for pedestrians and cyclists. This may require building out the
footway at the location of the crossing points and modifying the layout of the loading /
disabled bay.

Design Organisation Response Part accepted

Part-accepted: The pedestrian and cycle crossings over Farringdon Street will be

Audit Ref: 2462.01/000/A201/TLRN/2016
Date: 27/10/2016 Pagﬁ 79 Version: A



CS North-South Cycle Route (Phase 2), TfL Proposals (Rev 2B.1/ 2C)
Stage 1 Road Safety Audit Report

signalised with traffic held while each crossing is running allowing pedestrians and
cyclists to cross the road safely. Even with a high sided vehicle parked in the bay the
minimum forward visibility requirement of 40m to the pedestrian crossing (LTN1/95)
is achieved. The forward visibility to the cycle crossing is reduced due to the stop line
set back in relation to the kerb line.

The design team accepts that road users who choose to ignore safe signalised
facilities do so at their own risk. However it should be noted that the existing road
layout does not have a controlled pedestrian or cycle crossing at this junction and
pedestrians have far less visibility of oncoming traffic as the current uncontrolled
crossing is immediately adjacent to a parking bay. There have been no recorded
collisions involving pedestrians in the last 3 years at this junction. Additionally there
are no other safe, feasible locations to relocate the loading bay to owing to the
location which includes the Holborn Viaduct to the south and a bus stop to the north.
It is important the loading bay is maintained to ensure businesses in the area can
continue to be serviced.

As a means of mitigation the design has been amended so that loading and
unloading is only permitted between midnight and 7am. With taxis allowed to use the
bay for ranking between 10am and 4pm and 7pm - midnight. This change will ensure
that high sided vehicles that may restrict visibility the most are not using the bay
during the AM and PM peak when pedestrian footfall/cycle flows will be highest.

Client Organisation Comments

Agree with the designer’s response. Pedestrians and cyclists have dedicated green
time within the signal staging to cross the road separate from motor traffic.

Without a suitable location for the business under the Holborn Viaduct to service,
there is a risk that freight vehicles will park in the area illegally which in turn could
cause a greater risk to pedestrians or cyclists than the designated bay proposed.

3.4.2 PROBLEM
Location: C — Farringdon Street opposite Plumtree Court
Summary: Loading bay location may restrict visibility for powered two wheelers

The Audit Team is concerned that the location of the proposed loading / disabled /
taxi bay may restrict visibility to / from powered two wheelers. Powered two wheeler
riders may struggle to observe cyclists when backing out their motorcycle from the
parking bay, due to the presence of taxis or other vehicles parked immediately
upstream. Riders may enter the cycle facility injudiciously with an exacerbated
potential for conflict with cyclists as a result.

RECOMMENDATION
Increase the inter-visibility for powered two wheeler riders. This may require
modifying the layout of the loading / disabled / taxi bay.

Design Organisation Response Accepted

Accepted: The design has been amended to switch the bays around so that the
loading/disabled/taxi bay is now to the south of the motorcycle bay. This change
should increase inter-visibility for P2W riders.

Client Organisation Comments

Audit Ref: 2462.01/000/A201/TLRN/2016

Date: 27/10/2016 Pagze 80

Version: A



CS North-South Cycle Route (Phase 2), TfL Proposals (Rev 2B.1/2C)
Stage 1 Road Safety Audit Report

Agree with the designer’s response.

Audit Ref: 2462.01/000/A201/TLRN/2016
Date: 27/10/2016

Pagse 81

Version: A



CS North-South Cycle Route (Phase 2), TfL Proposals (Rev 2B.1/ 2C)
Stage 1 Road Safety Audit Report

3.4.3 PROBLEM
Location: D — Farringdon Road south of Greville Street
Summary: Loading bay location may pose a hazard to cyclists and drivers

The Audit Team is concerned that a loading bay is proposed within the cycle track on
Farringdon Road (northbound) on the approach to Greville Street. This layout poses
a number of safety concerns, namely:

- When the bay is occupied, cyclists within the cycle track will be required to re-join
the general traffic lane. This manoeuvre is less likely to be anticipated by other
road users with an exacerbated potential for conflict with cyclists as a result.

- Further to the point above, if cycle volumes experienced on the existing north-
south superhighway are replicated at this location, the number of cyclists
attempting to re-join the carriageway may be prohibitive and lead to congestion
within the cycle track. Congestion within the cycle track may lead to cyclists re-
joining the carriageway at the back of the queue which is also less likely to be
anticipated by other road users with an exacerbated potential for conflict with
cyclists as a result.

- Drivers attempting to enter the loading bay may experience difficulties in
identifying cyclists on the nearside, exacerbating a potential for conflict,
particularly if cycle approach speeds exceed the vehicle speed due to
congestion. Furthermore, cyclists are unlikely to anticipate a goods vehicle pulling
into the segregated facility when the remainder of the route is protected from
vehicular incursion.

- Any cyclist who re-joins the carriageway and cycles on the offside of the vehicle
may be situated within the ‘dooring zone’ of the drivers cab.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the loading bay is relocated to an alternative location. If this
cannot be achieved it may be preferable remove the cycle facility, or to modify the
layout of the facility to clarify priorities in a similar manner to the layout surrounding
the bus facility on the opposite side of the road.

Design Organisation Response Part Accepted

Part accepted: The proposed loading bay is essential to ensure businesses along
this section of Farringdon Road can be serviced. Alternative locations were
investigated but no feasible locations were available. The design team appreciates
the potential conflicts with large numbers of cyclists using the cycle track and as a
means of mitigating this are proposing that loading and unloading will only be
permitted between the hours of 12am and 6am. During these hours the humber of
cyclists using the cycle track will be much less than during peak hours/daytime. The
likelihood of the potential issues outlined above should therefore be dramatically
reduced.

It is proposed to change the loading facility from a bay to a single red line and permit
stopping only between the hours of 12am and 6am in order to facilitate loading and
unloading. This has been proposed to discourage vehicles from illegally using the
bay during peak times. TfL’s enforcement team have advised that single red lines are
used illegally less than red route bays.

Client Organisation Comments

Agree with the designer’s response. It is essential that provision is provided for

Audit Ref: 2462.01/000/A201/TLRN/2016
Date: 27/10/2016 Pag? 82 Version: A



CS North-South Cycle Route (Phase 2), TfL Proposals (Rev 2B.1/2C)
Stage 1 Road Safety Audit Report

servicing the businesses along this section of the route and no alternative locations
are available as the only accesses to the businesses are on Farringdon Road.

Changing the proposed bay to a single red line should reduce the tendency for
drivers to park illegally in this location as they may have been more likely to in a
marked out bay.

Cycle logo patches have been proposed on the carriageway parallel to the loading
facility to raise awareness to drivers of the potential presence of cyclists in the
carriageway.

Audit Ref: 2462.01/000/A201/TLRN/2016
Date: 27/10/2016

Pa%e 83

Version: A



CS North-South Cycle Route (Phase 2), TfL Proposals (Rev 2B.1/ 2C)
Stage 1 Road Safety Audit Report

3.5
3.51

CARRIAGEWAYS

PROBLEM

Location: E — Farringdon Street approach to West Smithfield
Summary:  Carriageway alignment may pose a hazard to road users

The Audit Team is concerned that the southbound carriageway in proximity to the
bus stop guides road users into the central pedestrian refuge island. Should a bus be
located within the bus stop, road users passing the bus may fail to appreciate the
abrupt requirement to deviate around the pedestrian island. An exacerbated potential
for conflict with the feature and associated potential for personal injury may exist as a
result.

RECOMMENDATION

Increase the distance between the bus stop and the pedestrian refuge to provide a
greater transition length. If this cannot be achieved it may be beneficial to maximise
the visibility of the pedestrian island.

Design Organisation Response Accepted

Accepted: There will also be a primary traffic signal on the island which should
make drivers aware of the presence of a traffic island. However it is accepted that
the traffic lane alignment curves abruptly on the approach to the island.

Hatching to TSRGD diagram number 1040 has been added on the approach to the
island to increase its visibility and to guide drivers around the island.

It is not possible to move the bus stop further north to smooth the lane alignment due
to the space required at the rear of the bus stop to track large vehicles around and
leave adequate clearance between northbound and southbound traffic lanes. The
current design allows for vehicles of all class to manoeuvre around the bus cage.

Client Organisation Comments

Agree with the designer’s response.

End of list of problems identified and recommendations offered in this Stage 1 Road Safety Audit

Audit Ref: 2462.01/000/A201/TLRN/2016
Date: 27/10/2016 Pa%e 84

Version: A



CS North-South Cycle Route (Phase 2), TfL Proposals (Rev 2B.1/ 2C)
Stage 1 Road Safety Audit Report

4.0

41

4.2

ISSUES IDENTIFIED DURING THE STAGE 1 ROAD SAFETY AUDIT THAT
ARE OUTSIDE THE TERMS OF REFERENCE

Safety issues identified during the audit and site inspection that are considered to be
outside the Terms of Reference, but which the Audit Team wishes to draw to the
attention of the Client Organisation, are set out in this section. It is to be understood
that, in raising these issues, the Audit Team in no way warrants that a full review of
the highway environment has been undertaken beyond that necessary to undertake
the Audit as commissioned.

ISSUE
Location: General to scheme, multiple locations
Reason considered to be outside the Terms of Reference: Detailed design issue

It is proposed to provide the cycle facility under the Holborn Viaduct at trief kerb level.
Although no exact details regarding this layout have been provided, the Audit Team
are concerned that without the provision of a physical feature to discourage cyclists
from travelling close to the edge of the kerbing, there is a risk for cyclists to fall from
the kerbing into the carriageway. It is recommended that the layout incorporates a
raised upstand or feature at the carriageway side of the facility to discourage cyclists
from travelling too close to the carriageway.

Design Organisation Response Accepted

Accepted: The exact design of the trief kerb level cycle track is still to be
determined. However, it is agreed that a raised feature should be present to
discourage cyclists from travelling close to the kerb edge. This recommendation will
be included in the final design handed over to the detailed designers.

Client Organisation Comments

Agree with the designer’s response.

ISSUE
Location: General to scheme, multiple locations
Reason considered to be outside the Terms of Reference: Detailed design issue

A number of the side roads are indicated without the provision of a give-way feature
to indicate priority and to advise drivers of the location to wait when exiting. This is
considered to be a design anomaly and it is recommended that a give-way is
provided at all side road accesses that do not have priority.

Design Organisation Response Rejected

Rejected: The locations of the side roads without give way markings are all situated
on Farringdon Street. All of these side roads or accesses are anticipated to have
very low flows as they provide access for loading/unloading to a small number of
premises. Any driver who is emerging from one of these accesses must have
entered from Farringdon Street and will therefore be aware that they are crossing a
footway and cycle track and should give way before entering the main carriageway.

Each side road has a raised entry treatment, with footway material which will prompt
drivers to slow down and give way to traffic on the cycle track and carriageway as

Audit Ref- 2462.01/000/A201/TLRN/2016
Date: 27/10/2016 Page 85

Version: A



CS North-South Cycle Route (Phase 2), TfL Proposals (Rev 2B.1/ 2C)
Stage 1 Road Safety Audit Report

well as pedestrians on the footway. Cycle symbols (diagram 1057) at the mouths of
the side roads reinforce this.

The same approach has been taken at lightly trafficked side roads in Phase 1 of the
North-South scheme on Blackfriars Road and no safety issues have been observed
or reported.

Treating these accesses as crossovers rather than side roads has urban realm
benefits from less road markings and gives the feel of a more pedestrian friendly and
less traffic dominated environment.

Client Organisation Comments

Agree with the designer’s response. Road markings such as give-way lines are not
commonly used for vehicle access points such as these, therefore further markings
are not recommended.

Audit Ref: 2462.01/000/A201/TLRN/2016

Date: 27/10/2016 Pagﬁ 86

Version: A



CS North-South Cycle Route (Phase 2), TfL Proposals (Rev 2B.1/ 2C)
Stage 1 Road Safety Audit Report

4.3

4.4

ISSUE
Location: 1 — Turnagain Lane junction with Farringdon Street
Reason considered to be outside the Terms of Reference: Detailed design issue

It is proposed to provide a give way facility at the edge of the building line on
Turnagain Lane. The close proximity of the adjacent building is likely to significantly
restrict visibility to the left for drivers. It may be beneficial to consider bringing the
give-way facility forward to increase visibility.

Design Organisation Response Accepted

Accepted: The design will be amended to bring forward the give way markings to
increase visibility for drivers. It should be noted that traffic flows in and out of
Turnagain Lane are likely to be low given that it is a minor access road to the loading
bays at the rear of 14-21 A40 Holborn Viaduct.

Client Organisation Comments

Agree with the designer’s response.

ISSUE
Location: 2 — Farringdon Street junction with West Smithfield

Reason considered to be outside the Terms of Reference: Iltem for consideration
rather than a defined road safety concern

It is proposed to provide a give-way facility for northbound cyclists exiting from West
Smithfield. The size of the facility is unlikely to accommodate more than a couple of
cyclists before spilling out into the carriageway. Whilst unlikely to pose a road safety
concern, it may be beneficial to review the size of the facility and ensure it is
adequate to accommodate the volume of cyclists likely to use it.

This is of particular concern as if congested, cyclists may resort to turning right within
the carriageway if their onward path is obstructed. Cyclists that perform this
manoeuvre would do so through the pedestrian crossing on the exit to the junction
which operates in the same traffic signal stage.

Design Organisation Response Rejected

Rejected: Traffic surveys carried out in October 2016 recorded a maximum peak
hour flow of 27 cyclists per hour turning right out of Snow Hill into Farringdon Street.
This equates to less than 1 cyclist per cycle of the traffic signals that could turn right
into the cycle track, which can comfortably be accommodated within the waiting area
provided. The waiting area up to the give way marking can store at least 2 cyclists. A
keep clear marking is also positioned east of the give way marking to prevent other
cyclists blocking those entering from Snow Hill. This area provides space for at least
an extra 2 cyclists to wait.

Eastbound and westbound cyclists receive a green signal in the same stage so by
the time cyclists from Snow Hill reach the northbound cycle track, most cyclists will
have left the stop line and reservoir, creating space for cyclists to enter.

The transition from stage 4 (cycle crossing) to stage 1 (northbound traffic) is likely to
be controlled by the intergreen associated with the pedestrian crossing as this will be

Audit Ref: 2462.01/000/A201/TLRN/2016
Date: 27/10/2016 Pa&? 87

Version: A



CS North-South Cycle Route (Phase 2), TfL Proposals (Rev 2B.1/ 2C)
Stage 1 Road Safety Audit Report

longer than the intergreens associated with the cycle crossing and northbound traffic.
This adds extra time for cyclists to enter the cycle track before northbound and

southbound traffic gain right of way.

Client Organisation Comments

Agree with the designer’s response. Detailed traffic modelling has informed the
design of this junction and the space provided for cyclists is deemed to be
appropriate to the demand and layout of the junction.

Audit Ref: 2462.01/000/A201/TLRN/2016 Pagp 88

Date: 27/10/2016 Version: A



CS North-South Cycle Route (Phase 2), TfL Proposals (Rev 2B.1/ 2C)
Stage 1 Road Safety Audit Report

4.5

4.6

ISSUE
Location: 3 — Farringdon Street north of West Smithfield
Reason considered to be outside the Terms of Reference: Detailed design issue

It is proposed to provide a bus shelter within the floating bus stop island. It would
appear that the bus shelter is located in close proximity to the cycle track. It may be
beneficial to ensure adequate lateral clearance is provided to the rear of the shelter
to ensure the feature does not pose a hazard to cyclists.

Design Organisation Response Rejected

Rejected: This has been accommodated within the design as there is 450mm lateral
clearance between the western kerb face of the cycle track and the bus shelter. This
is the clearance recommended in LCDS 2 and has been used as the standard
throughout the North-South route and many other cycling schemes across London.

Client Organisation Comments

Agree with the designer’s response. The design of the bus stop and shelter comply
with TfL’s standards for bus stop bypasses and adequate clearance is provided from
the bus shelter to the cycle track.

ISSUE
Location: 4 — Greville Street junction with Farringdon Road
Reason considered to be outside the Terms of Reference: Not safety related

It is proposed to provide an uncontrolled pedestrian crossing facility across the cycle
track on Greville Street. Due to the number of pedestrians likely to use this footway it
is highly likely that pedestrians will cross without giving regard to the presence of
cyclists. Whilst unlikely to result in personal injury due to the very low speeds cyclists
will need to be travelling to make this manoeuvre. It may be beneficial to provide
measures to facilitate cyclists to pass through Greville Street less impeded. At peak
times the number of cyclists waiting to pass may block the facility for other cyclists.

Design Organisation Response Part Accepted

Part Accepted: The design team acknowledges there will be heavy pedestrian and
cycle flows using Greville Street due to the Crossrail station opening at Farringdon in
2018. Alternative route alignments for the cycle track were considered at the
planning stages and the alignment proposed is deemed the most suitable.

Measures have therefore been taken to encourage pedestrians to cross the cycle
track at the designated crossing point to ensure the potential conflict points are
minimised. This has been achieved by positioning a line of street furniture alongside
the cycle track. It is also proposed that the cycle track be at a different level to the
surrounding footway to discourage pedestrians from crossing it away from the
crossing point.

An ASL is proposed on Farringdon Road for northbound cyclists. The ASL is 7m
deep which should provide space for any northbound cyclists to wait without
impeding cyclists turning left into Greville Street. The feeder lane for cyclists is 2m
wide which is wide enough to allow cyclists to separate into streams; those turning
left into Greville Street and those continuing north along Farringdon Road.

Audit Ref: 2462.01/000/A201/TLRN/2016
Date: 27/10/2016 Pagﬁ 89

Version: A



CS North-South Cycle Route (Phase 2), TfL Proposals (Rev 2B.1/ 2C)
Stage 1 Road Safety Audit Report

Signalising the crossing point over the cycle track was considered but ruled out due
to the narrow crossing distance. It was thought pedestrians may not pay attention to
the signals with such a narrow crossing and still cross when cyclists have right of
way, potentially increasing the conflict issue. It was also decided that adding extra
street furniture to such a busy footway would worsen pedestrian comfort and detract
from the urban realm.

Similar courtesy crossings along the route with high pedestrian and cycle interaction
have been observed to operate well.

Client Organisation Comments

Agree with the designer’s response. It is not proposed to signalise the informal
crossing over the cycle track due to the likelihood of non-compliance. Significant
improvements have been made in this location to facilitate the increased pedestrian
flows that are expected from the opening of Crossrail. These include wider footways
on Greville Street with the closure to motor traffic and a wider pedestrian crossing
over Farringdon Road.

The crossing and footways take into account pedestrian desire lines. In addition,
there is currently a construction hoarding blocking the east footway on Farringdon
Road. Once the Crossrail works are complete, this footway will be re-opened and
those pedestrians heading south are likely to use this side of the road rather than
crossing Farringdon Road and the cycle track to head south. Furthermore, four new
signalised crossings are proposed at the Charterhouse Street junction to the south
providing formal facilities for pedestrians to cross and continue in any direction.

Audit Ref: 2462.01/000/A201/TLRN/2016
Date: 27/10/2016 Pagze 90 Version: A



CS North-South Cycle Route (Phase 2), TfL Proposals (Rev 2B.1/ 2C)
Stage 1 Road Safety Audit Report

4.7 ISSUE
Location: 5 — Farringdon Road junction with Ray Street

Reason considered to be outside the Terms of Reference: ltem for consideration
rather than a defined road safety concern

A previous iteration of the proposals included the provision of a right turn pocket for
vehicles turning into Ray Street. The revised proposals remove this provision. It may
be beneficial to provide a right turning pocket at this location to encourage correct
road position and discourage encroachment into the opposing traffic lane.

Accepted: This was removed accidentally and has been reinstated into the designs.

Agree with the designer’s response.

Audit Ref: 2462.01/000/A201/TLRN/2016
Date: 27/10/2016 P agée 9 1 Version: A



CS North-South Cycle Route (Phase 2), TfL Proposals (Rev 2B.1/ 2C)
Stage 1 Road Safety Audit Report

5.0
5.1

SIGNATURES AND SIGN-OFF

AUDIT TEAM STATEMENT

We certify that we have examined the drawings and documents listed in Appendix A.
to this Safety Audit report. The Road Safety Audit has been carried out in accordance
with TfL Procedure SQA-0170 dated May 2014, with the sole purpose of identifying
any feature that could be removed or modified in order to improve the safety of the
measures. The problems identified have been noted in this report together with
associated suggestions for safety improvements that we recommend should be
studied for implementation.

No one on the Audit Team has been involved with the design of the measures.

AUDIT TEAM LEADER:
Name: Signed:
A

Position: Road Safety Audit Manager Date: 27/10/2016

Organisation: Transport for London, Road Safety Audit
Asset Management Directorate

Address: 4™ Floor Palestra, 197 Blackfriars Road, London, SE1 8NJ

contect: |

AUDIT TEAM MEMBER:

Name: Signed:

Position: Principal Road Safety Auditor Date: 27/10/2016

Organisation: Transport for London, Road Safety Audit
Asset Management Directorate

Address: 4™ Floor Palestra, 197 Blackfriars Road, London, SE1 8NJ

conact:

Audit Ref: 2462.01/000/A201/TLRN/2016
Date: 27/10/2016 Pagp 92

Version: A



CS North-South Cycle Route (Phase 2), TfL Proposals (Rev 2B.1/2C)
Stage 1 Road Safety Audit Report

5.2 DESIGN TEAM STATEMENT

In accordance with SQA-0170 dated May 2014, | certify that | have reviewed the
items raised in this Stage 1 Safety Audit report. | have given due consideration to
each issue raised and have stated my proposed course of action for each in this
report. | seek the Client Organisation’s endorsement of my proposals.

Name: [

Position: Lead Design Engineer
Organisation: ODE TfL

Signed: - Dated: 2" May 2017

5.3 CLIENT ORGANISATION STATEMENT

| accept these proposals by the Design Organisation.

Name: [

Position: Senior Sponsor
Organisation: RSM TfL

Signed: - Dated: 19 April 2017

5.4 SECONDARY CLIENT ORGANISATION STATEMENT (where appropriate)

| accept these proposals by the Design Organisation.

Name: [

Position: Senior Portfolio Sponsor
Organisation: TfL RSM

Signed: Dated: 19 April 2017

Audit Ref: 2462.01/000/A201/TLRN/2016 Pag\)e 03

Date: 27/10/2016 Version: A



CS North-South Cycle Route (Phase 2), TfL Proposals (Rev 2B.1/2C)

Stage 1 Road Safety Audit Report

DRAWING NUMBER

TDE-ST-PJ338-CSNS-ID-21
TDE-ST-PJ338-CSNS-ID-22
TDE-ST-PJ338-CSNS-ID-23
TDE-ST-PJ338-CSNS-ID-24
TDE-ST-PJ338-CSNS-ID-25
TDE-ST-PJ338-CSNS-ID-26
TDE-ST-PJ338-CSNS-ID-27

DOCUMENTS

X] Safety Audit Brief

[ ] Site Location Plan

[] Traffic signal details

[ ] TfL signal safety checklist

] Departures from standard

[] Previous Road Safety Audits
[] Previous Designer Responses
[ ] Collision data

] Collision plot

[] Traffic flow / modelling data
[] Pedestrian flow / modelling data
[ ] Speed survey data

[ ] Other documents

APPENDIX A

Documents Forming the Audit Brief

DRAWING TITLE

Drawing 21 of 27
Drawing 22 of 27
Drawing 23 of 27
Drawing 24 of 27
Drawing 25 of 27
Drawing 26 of 27
Drawing 27 of 27

DETAILS (where appropriate)

Audit Ref: 2462.01/000/A201/TLRN/2016
Date: 27/10/2016

Pa%e 94

Version: A



CS North-South Cycle Route (Phase 2), TfL Proposals (Rev 2B.1/2C)
Stage 1 Road Safety Audit Report

APPENDIX B

Problem Locations

Audit Ref: 2462.01/000/A201/TLRN/2016 Pagﬁ 05

Date: 27/10/2016 Version: A



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Appendix 3

Data from the Farringdon Street/Charterhouse Street junction

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 104



Appendix 4

A “ Client: Transport for London PCU Values
| Rigid 2
o B Project: 3378-LON-JB Farringdon Car/ Lgv|Ldn taxi| axle HGV PSV MC PC
Site: 2. Farringdon Street/ West Smithfield/ Snow Hill 1.0 1.0 15 2.3 2.0 0.4 0.2
c Date: 5 weekday Average
Entry: ArmA
Destination : Arm A Destination : Arm B Destination : Arm C
Time Time Car/ Rigid 2 PCU Rigid 2 PCU Rigid 2 PCU
from |To ‘ Lgv Ldn taxi axle HGV PSV MC PC| Total Total Car/ Lgv_Ldn taxi axle HGV PSV MC PC| Total Total Car/ Lgv_Ldn taxi axle HGV PSV MC PC| Total Total
00:00{ 01:00 0.2 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.6 9.0 1.2 1.0 3.2 0.0 0.2 0.2 14.8 19.2 207.8 39.2 7.0 2.8 16.6 5.4 11.4 290.2 301.6
01:00{ 02:00 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2 17.4 0.8 0.8 3.2 0.0 0.2 0.0 22.4 26.8 1724 25.6 8.6 6.8 6.0 4.0 4.0 227.4 240.9
02:00f 03:00 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2 20.6 0.4 1.0 2.0 0.0 0.2 0.0 24.2 27.2 120.2 11.4 8.8 8.0 2.2 3.2 3.0 156.8 169.5
03:00{ 04:00 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.3 21.2 0.2 1.0 2.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 24.4 275 112.2 5.8 11.4 4.8 2.2 1.6 0.4 138.4 151.3
04:00{ 05:00 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.4 234 0.2 1.6 0.4 0.0 1.0 0.0 26.6 27.3 125.2 6.2 11.8 9.6 4.0 6.4 4.2 167.4 182.6
05:00f 06:00 0.2 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.5 28.2 0.2 2.2 1.2 0.0 0.2 0.0 32.0 34.5 204.8 7.4 18.6 12.8 9.2 6.6 11.2 270.6 292.8
06:00/ 07:00 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2 17.2 0.2 4.0 1.6 0.0 5.0 18 29.8 29.4 312.4 10.8 39.2 9.4 21.2 32.0 47.0 472.0 468.2
07:00/ 08:00 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.3 12.0 0.2 4.0 2.2 0.0 0.6 8.2 27.2 25.1 273.6 26.0 36.2 14.4 24.4 776 1954 647.6 505.9
08:00f 09:00 1.0 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 14 15 11.8 2.0 2.2 2.0 0.0 2.2 12.6 32.8 25.1 233.2 53.2 44.6 11.2 254 1116 463.0 942.2 567.1
09:00{ 10:00 0.4 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.8 6.8 1.2 2.4 1.4 0.0 2.4 5.0 19.2 16.8 243.2 67.0 31.8 11.4 26.2 72.8  256.6 709.0 517.0
10:00| 11:00 0.6 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.0 14 1.3 7.0 3.4 3.4 1.4 0.0 1.2 1.2 17.6 19.4 2334 57.2 36.4 11.8 30.0 40.4 55.8 465.0 459.7
11:00| 12:00 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.0 1.0 0.9 6.8 1.8 2.2 0.2 0.0 0.4 14 12.8 12.8 228.4 52.8 35.6 12.0 25.2 42.6 43.8 440.4 438.4
12:00| 13:00 0.8 0.4 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.6 1.8 7.4 1.4 2.4 0.2 0.0 2.4 2.0 15.8 14.2 2124 49.4 30.2 11.4 25.0 40.8 46.6 415.8 409.0
13:00| 14:00 0.4 1.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.0 2.6 2.1 6.2 2.0 1.2 0.2 0.0 1.8 2.0 13.4 11.6 245.0 58.2 31.6 14.8 26.6 42.6 58.2 477.0 466.5
14:00m=15:00 0.6 1.0 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 18 2.1 7.8 2.2 1.6 1.0 0.0 1.6 1.6 15.8 15.7 260.2 62.6 27.2 8.6 24.2 47.8 49.2 479.8 460.7
15:0()._\_"16:00 1.0 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.6 1.6 6.6 2.8 0.4 0.4 0.0 2.4 3.2 15.8 12.5 276.4 57.4 28.2 8.0 26.2 56.4 62.4 515.0 481.9
16:008 17:00 0.2 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.2 1.2 6.0 2.0 18 0.2 0.0 1.6 2.2 13.8 12.2 304.2 55.4 14.4 4.8 24.8 79.2  123.2 606.0 498.2
17:064< 18:00 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.8 5.2 3.2 1.0 0.0 0.0 1.6 3.4 14.4 11.2 307.0 59.0 12.4 2.6 26.4 122.8  346.0 876.2 561.7
18:0! 19:00 0.4 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 7.2 2.4 0.4 0.2 0.0 2.0 3.4 15.6 12.1 300.8 44.6 10.0 4.2 25.2 94.2  446.6 925.6 5475
19:01 20:00 1.4 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.6 2.6 9.8 1.4 0.2 0.4 0.0 1.4 2.8 19.8 17.0 286.8 43.2 6.8 3.0 28.4 51.8 166.4 817.6 619.0
20:00==y21:00 1.8 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.6 2.6 10.4 3.8 0.2 0.6 0.0 1.8 18 18.6 17.0 285.0 50.2 8.8 3.8 21.2 32.8 86.4 488.2 429.9
21:00 '_ﬁZZ:OO 0.6 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.2 1.2 8.0 3.6 0.2 1.0 0.0 0.2 1.2 14.2 14.5 306.2 45.0 6.6 4.0 17.4 31.2 77.4 487.8 433.1
22:00¢ b3:00 2.0 0.6 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.0 3.2 6.8 1.6 0.4 1.2 0.0 0.4 0.4 10.8 12.0 306.8 45.0 8.8 3.4 16.8 254 52.6 458.8 427.1
23:00{ 00:00 2.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.0 3.0 11.2 3.2 0.4 2.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 17.0 20.1 2544 42.6 9.6 4.8 16.2 17.4 35.2 380.2 368.8

Total | 146 12.0 16 0.2 0.0 12 0.0 29.6 30.3|| 274.0 41.4 36.0 28.4 0.0 30.8 54.4 465.0 461.4” 5812.0 9752 484.6 1884 471.0 1046.6 2646.0| 11623.8] 9998.4




Appendix 4

A “ Client: Transport for London PCU Values
| Rigid 2
- 8 Project: 3378-LON-JB Farringdon Car/ Lgv|Ldn taxi| axle HGV PSV MC PC
Site: 2. Farringdon Street/ West Smithfield/ Snow Hill 1.0 1.0 15 2.3 2.0 0.4 0.2
c Date: 5 weekday Average
Entry: ArmB
Destination : Arm A Destination : Arm B Destination : Arm C
Time Time Car/ Rigid 2 PCU Rigid 2 PCU Rigid 2 PCU
from |T0 ‘ Lgv Ldn taxi axle HGV PSV MC PC| Total Total Car/ Lgv_Ldn taxi axle HGV PSV MC PC| Total Total Car/ Lgv_Ldn taxi axle HGV PSV MC PC| Total Total
00:00{ 01:00 43.2 16.2 2.2 3.4 0.8 0.6 0.8 67.2 72.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.5 86.8 29.8 3.0 1.6 0.0 2.2 2.4 125.8 126.1
01:00{ 02:00 30.2 9.8 4.0 5.8 0.2 0.4 0.0 50.4 59.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 57.2 12.6 2.6 2.0 0.0 18 0.8 77.0 79.2
02:00f 03:00 38.4 52 3.4 6.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 53.2 62.5 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.7 56.0 6.4 5.6 1.0 0.0 1.0 0.4 70.4 73.6
03:00{ 04:00 39.2 3.2 6.4 5.8 0.0 0.2 0.0 54.8 65.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 71.6 4.0 4.6 3.4 0.0 0.8 0.4 84.8 90.7
04:00{ 05:00 38.6 1.6 8.4 3.0 0.0 0.4 0.6 52.6 60.0 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.4 68.8 1.2 5.8 2.8 0.0 0.6 0.6 79.8 85.5
05:00{ 06:00 42.6 1.8 9.2 3.8 0.0 2.2 0.4 60.0 67.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 92.6 1.0 9.8 2.2 0.0 1.2 2.8 109.6 1144
06:00f 07:00 74.6 3.4 17.2 3.0 0.0 2.0 1.8 102.0 111.9 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.3 154.0 6.6 19.8 3.8 0.2 6.4 14.4 205.2 204.9
07:00{ 08:00 79.6 12.2 12.8 2.8 0.2 3.4 9.0 120.0 121.0 0.0 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.5 182.6 18.4 22.2 5.6 0.6 15.0 61.6 306.0 266.7
08:00{ 09:00 63.2 16.0 14.2 2.2 0.4 6.6 10.0 112.6 111.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2 183.8 29.4 19.8 3.6 0.2 29.8 1428 409.4 292.1
09:00{ 10:00 56.6 25.4 10.4 2.0 0.6 52 9.2 109.4 107.3 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2 171.2 34.8 25.4 5.2 0.6 20.0 110.8 368.0 2874
10:00| 11:00 64.6 25.2 11.4 1.2 1.2 7.8 4.8 116.2 116.1 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.6 162.0 38.8 22.2 3.6 0.6 16.6 28.4 272.2 255.9
11:00| 12:00 74.6 28.0 11.6 1.2 0.0 6.4 4.0 125.8 126.1 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.6 0.5 163.2 37.2 23.6 4.4 0.4 16.4 13.2 258.4 255.9
12:00| 13:00 66.2 39.6 9.8 1.6 0.2 13.6 7.4 138.4 1315 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.4 0.2 145.8 40.4 22.0 4.2 0.2 22.2 19.4 254.2 242.0
13:00| 14:00 60.4 36.6 6.4 1.4 0.6 12.0 4.2 121.6 116.7 0.0 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.6 0.5 143.0 43.2 13.8 1.6 0.0 234 24.0 249.0 224.7
14:001=115:00 71.0 40.8 7.2 1.6 1.4 11.0 6.6 139.6 134.8 0.2 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.5 1414 44.8 12.6 18 0.2 27.2 27.8 255.8 226.1
15:01 .YlG:OO 66.2 44.8 6.0 1.8 1.4 9.0 5.8 135.0 131.7 0.4 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.8 0.7 148.4 46.4 12.6 2.4 0.0 27.6 30.0 267.4 236.3
16:00 & 17:00 67.4 44.6 4.0 1.0 0.0 11.4 8.4 136.8 126.5 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2 140.4 40.8 10.0 1.6 0.0 46.2 75.4 314.4 2334
17:06%=< 18:00 67.0 43.4 2.0 2.0 0.0 17.2 18.2 149.8 128.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.5 139.8 514 5.8 0.6 0.0 78.6 2554 531.6 283.8
18:0d{D 19:00 81.0 46.4 1.4 1.0 0.2 25.4 22.0 177.4 146.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 161.2 40.0 3.6 0.8 0.6 82.0 2974 585.6 301.9
19:01 20:00 834 39.6 2.4 1.0 0.4 17.2 10.4 154.4 138.7 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2 117.6 39.8 5.4 1.2 0.6 43.6 107.0 315.2 208.3
20:004==21:00 78.8 40.0 3.4 0.8 0.8 8.4 6.0 138.2 131.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 113.6 46.0 4.6 14 0.4 25.2 49.6 240.8 190.5
21:00 :22:00 83.0 44.8 1.4 1.8 1.0 6.6 3.2 141.8 139.3 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.4 112.8 60.0 2.0 14 0.2 20.6 29.2 226.2 193.5
22:00# %23:00 84.0 49.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 4.8 3.2 145.6 144.1 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.4 114.6 43.0 4.8 0.6 0.0 6.8 17.4 187.2 1724
23:00{ 00:00 73.6 41.6 2.6 3.2 0.2 3.2 1.0 125.4 128.3 0.4 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.6 100.6 43.8 6.2 1.0 0.0 6.2 8.8 166.6 160.2

|T0tal |1527.4 659.6 159.2 58.8 110 1750 137.2| 27282 2680.5|| 3.8 14 0.8 0.6 0.0 0.4 0.4 7.4 8.0|| 3029.0 759.8 267.8 57.8 4.8 5214 1320.0) 5960.6] 4805.6




Appendix 4

A “ Client: Transport for London PCU Values
| Rigid 2
- 8 Project: 3378-LON-JB Farringdon Car/ Lgv|Ldn taxi| axle HGV PSV MC PC
Site: 2. Farringdon Street/ West Smithfield/ Snow Hill 1.0 1.0 15 2.3 2.0 0.4 0.2
c Date: 5 weekday Average
Entry: ArmC
Destination : Arm A Destination : Arm B Destination : Arm C
Time Time Car/ Rigid 2 PCU Rigid 2 PCU Rigid 2 PCU
from |T0 ‘ Lgv Ldn taxi axle HGV PSV MC PC| Total Total Car/ Lgv_Ldn taxi axle HGV PSV MC PC| Total Total Car/ Lgv_Ldn taxi axle HGV PSV MC PC| Total Total
00:00f 01:.00f 211.0 28.0 6.0 3.8 16.0 6.0 10.8 281.6 293.3 514 13.8 4.0 2.2 0.0 1.8 1.6 74.8 77.3 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.6
01:00f 02:00{ 142.0 15.8 4.6 4.4 3.4 3.8 3.8 177.8 183.9 53.4 5.6 2.8 1.2 0.0 0.6 0.2 63.8 66.2 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.6
02:00/ 03:00f 1124 7.2 6.2 3.8 2.6 3.8 3.8 139.8 145.1 46.8 1.6 14 1.6 0.0 1.6 0.4 53.4 54.9 0.2 0.0 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.8
03:00{ 04:00 96.0 7.2 11.0 6.8 2.2 3.2 3.0 129.4 141.6 44.6 0.6 3.2 0.8 0.0 0.8 0.6 50.6 52.3 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.9
04:00/ 05:00f 1214 4.6 14.0 8.4 4.2 10.6 2.6 165.8 179.5 54.4 0.4 3.4 0.6 0.0 1.2 0.0 60.0 61.8 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.6
05:00/ 06:00] 176.4 5.4 22.6 8.4 13.4 12.8 6.0 245.0 268.1 72.0 1.0 7.0 0.8 0.0 3.2 7.6 91.6 88.1 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2
06:00/ 07:00/ 288.8 10.4 28.8 10.4 21.0 30.8 46.0 436.2 429.8 67.6 0.8 8.0 2.2 0.0 7.2 23.8 109.6 93.1 0.8 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.1
07:00/ 08:00/ 235.0 16.2 32.6 10.0 32.8 614 172.0 560.0 447.7 75.4 7.6 10.2 3.2 0.0 42.0 115.0 2534 1455 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2
08:00/ 09:00/ 196.8 30.2 33.0 10.6 26.0 114.0 565.6 976.2 511.6 90.6 18.4 11.6 2.2 0.0 68.6 352.4 543.8 229.4 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2
09:00/ 10:00| 218.2 44.0 33.6 11.0 27.6 86.2 432.0 852.6 514.0 82.4 18.8 13.4 1.6 0.2 55.8  210.0 382.2 189.7 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.0 0.6 0.4
10:00| 11:00] 211.6 314 31.8 14.8 24.8 41.2 88.6 444.2 408.5 81.0 16.4 11.2 2.8 0.0 23.8 36.2 1714 137.4 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.6
11:00| 12:00| 214.6 43.2 36.6 10.8 25.0 40.0 61.8 432.0 415.9 74.6 18.6 10.6 3.6 0.2 18.2 224 148.2 129.5 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2
12:00| 13:00| 200.6 40.2 30.8 12.6 25.0 37.2 72.6 419.0 395.4 71.6 19.8 8.2 1.6 0.0 21.0 17.6 139.8 119.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.7
13:00| 14:00| 212.6 45.0 28.6 10.4 26.0 41.8 56.6 421.0 404.5 73.8 20.4 9.2 1.8 0.0 23.2 18.8 147.2 125.2 0.4 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.7
14:001=115:00| 205.6 44.2 23.6 9.2 24.6 34.2 65.0 406.4 382.2 73.8 24.4 15.8 2.6 0.4 17.0 17.2 151.2 138.9 0.6 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.0 1.0 1.0
15:01 .YlG:OO 194.2 59.6 22.0 10.8 26.8 50.2 76.2 439.8 400.6 82.2 22.4 11.4 1.4 0.2 19.6 18.2 155.4 136.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.5
16:00 I 17:00] 2284 54.4 23.6 8.8 26.8 65.8 14538 553.6 447.5 93.0 18.4 10.6 1.6 0.2 23.8 324 180.0 147.4 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.4 0.2
17:06k= 18:00] 226.2 57.2 14.8 52 276 101.8 357.0 789.8 484.9 95.0 24.8 4.2 1.8 0.2 30.0 94.6 250.6 161.6 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.3
18:0d]U 10:00] 259.6 46.4 13.0 4.4 23.4 98.0 436.6 881.4 508.9 108.8 23.2 2.0 0.4 0.4 30.8 117.6 283.2 172.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
19:01 20:00| 254.0 45.8 15.2 3.4 26.0 49.8 2154 609.6 445.4 74.0 27.6 2.2 1.6 0.2 14.4 57.8 177.8 126.3 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2
20:004==21:00 272.8 49.4 9.6 7.4 20.2 288 1014 489.6 425.8 73.0 26.2 2.6 1.4 0.2 10.8 23.6 137.8 115.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
21:00 ‘122:00 288.8 50.2 9.4 8.0 17.0 20.2 72.6 466.2 428.1 72.8 24.4 1.0 0.6 0.0 8.6 13.2 120.6 106.2 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.8
22:00] NM23:00f 297.8 53.8 10.2 2.4 17.2 17.0 52.4 450.8 424.1 774 21.4 1.2 1.0 0.4 4.8 10.0 116.2 107.6 0.4 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.6
23:00f 00:00f 272.0 45.0 6.0 3.4 16.6 11.4 30.6 385.0 377.7 66.2 18.6 2.8 1.2 0.0 4.6 9.6 103.0 95.5 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.6

|T0tal |5136.8 834.8 467.6 189.2 4762 970.0 3078.2| 11152.8 9064.2|| 17558 375.2 158.0 39.8 26 4334 1200.8| 3965.6 2878.3” 7.4 0.8 2.0 0.2 0.0 0.6 0.2 11.2 119




Appendix 4

A “ Client: Transport for London PCU Values
| Rigid 2
- 8 Project: 3378-LON-JB Farringdon Car/ Lgv|Ldn taxi| axle HGV PSV MC PC
Site: 2. Farringdon Street/ West Smithfield/ Snow Hill 1.0 1.0 15 2.3 2.0 0.4 0.2
c Date: 5 weekday Average

ORIGIN SUMMARY

Origin : Arm A Origin : Arm B Origin : Arm C
Time Time Car/ Rigid 2 PCU Rigid 2 PCU Rigid 2 PCU
from To Lgv Ldn taxi axle HGV PSV MC PC| Total Total Car/ Lgv_Ldn taxi axle HGV PSV MC PC| Total Total Car/ Lgv_Ldn taxi axle HGV PSV MC PC| Total Total

00:00| 01:00f 217.0 40.8 8.0 6.0 16.6 5.6 116 305.6 321.4 130.0 46.0 5.2 52 0.8 2.8 3.2 193.2 199.1 263.0 41.8 10.0 6.0 16.0 7.8 124 357.0 371.2

01:00] 02:00f 190.0 26.4 9.4 10.0 6.0 4.2 4.0 250.0 268.0 87.4 22.4 6.6 7.8 0.2 2.2 0.8 127.4 139.1 196.0 21.4 7.4 5.6 3.4 4.4 4.0 242.2 250.7

02:00] 03:00f 1410 118 9.8 10.0 2.2 3.4 3.0 181.2 196.9 94.6 116 9.0 7.2 0.0 1.0 0.6 124.0 136.8 159.4 8.8 8.0 5.4 2.6 5.4 4.2 193.8 200.8

03:00f 04:.00f 1334 6.0 126 6.8 2.2 16 0.4 163.0 179.1 110.8 7.2 11.0 9.2 0.0 1.0 0.4 139.6 156.1 140.6 7.8 14.8 7.6 2.2 4.0 3.6 180.6 194.8

04:00] 05:00f 149.0 6.4 13.4 10.0 4.0 7.4 4.2 194.4 210.3 107.8 2.8 14.2 5.8 0.0 1.0 12 132.8 1459 176.4 5.0 17.4 9.0 4.2 118 2.6 226.4 241.8

05:00| 06:00f 2332 7.6 21.0 14.0 9.2 6.8 11.2 303.0 327.9 135.2 2.8 19.0 6.0 0.0 3.4 3.2 169.6 182.3 248.6 6.4 29.6 9.2 134 16.0 136 336.8 356.5

06:00] 07:00f 329.8 11.0 43.2 11.0 21.2 37.0 48.8 502.0 497.9 228.6 10.0 37.2 6.8 0.2 8.4 16.2 307.4 317.0 357.2 11.2 37.0 12.6 21.0 38.0 69.8 546.8 524.0

07:00] 08:00f 285.6 26.2 40.4 16.6 24.4 78.2 2036 675.0 531.4 262.2 30.8 35.2 8.4 0.8 18.4 70.6 426.4 388.2 310.6 23.8 42.8 13.2 328 1034 2870 813.6 593.3

08:00] 09:00f 246.0 55.4 47.0 13.2 254 1138 4756 976.4 593.7 247.2 45.4 34.0 5.8 0.6 36.4 1528 522.2 403.3 287.6 48.6 44.6 12.8 260 182.6 918.0| 1520.2 741.2

09:00f 10:00f 250.4 68.6 34.2 12.8 26.2 752 2616 729.0 534.5 228.0 60.2 35.8 7.2 12 252 120.0 477.6 394.9 300.6 63.0 47.0 12.6 278 1424 642.0] 12354 704.0

10:00f 11:00| 241.0 61.2 39.8 13.2 30.0 41.8 57.0 484.0 480.4 227.2 64.0 33.6 4.8 18 24.4 33.2 389.0 372.6 293.2 47.8 43.0 17.6 24.8 65.0 1248 616.2 546.5

11:.00f 12:00| 235.2 55.4 37.8 12.2 252 43.2 45.2 454.2 452.1 238.0 65.4 35.2 5.6 0.4 23.0 17.2 384.8 382.5 289.2 62.0 47.2 14.4 252 58.2 84.2 580.4 545.6

12:00f 13:00| 220.6 51.2 33.0 116 25.0 43.2 48.6 433.2 425.0 212.0 80.2 31.8 5.8 0.4 35.8 27.0 393.0 373.8 272.4 60.2 39.2 14.2 25.0 58.2 90.2 559.4 515.4

13:00f 14:00| 251.6 61.6 32.8 15.0 26.6 45.2 60.2 493.0 480.2 203.4 80.0 20.4 3.0 0.6 35.4 28.4 371.2 341.9 286.8 65.4 38.0 12.2 26.0 65.0 75.4 568.8 530.3

14.0017=15:00| 268.6 65.8 28.8 9.8 24.2 49.4 50.8 497.4 478.5 212.6 85.6 20.0 3.4 16 38.2 34.4 395.8 361.4 280.0 68.6 39.6 118 25.0 514 82.2 558.6 522.1

15:.0 \Y16:OO 284.0 60.8 28.6 8.4 26.2 58.8 65.6 532.4 496.1 215.0 914 18.6 4.2 14 36.8 35.8 403.2 368.6 276.4 82.0 33.4 12.4 27.0 69.8 94.4 595.4 537.8

16:0134"17:00 310.4 58.4 16.2 5.0 24.8 80.8 1254 621.0 511.6 208.0 85.4 14.0 2.6 0.0 57.6 83.8 451.4 360.2 321.6 72.8 34.2 10.4 27.0 89.6 178.4 734.0 595.1

17.06< 18:00] 3122 63.0 13.4 2.6 264 1244 3494 891.4 573.7 206.8 94.8 7.8 2.8 0.0 958 273.6 681.6 412.8 321.2 82.0 19.2 7.0 278 131.8 451.6| 1040.6 646.7

18:0d]U 19:00] 308.4 47.6 10.4 4.4 252 96.2 450.0 942.2 560.6 242.2 86.4 5.0 18 0.8 1074 3194 763.0 448.7 368.4 69.6 15.0 4.8 238 128.8 554.2| 1164.6 681.5

19:.0 20:00{ 298.0 45.4 7.0 3.4 28.4 532 169.2 604.6 473.6 201.2 79.4 7.8 2.2 1.0 608 117.4 469.8 347.2 328.2 73.4 17.4 5.0 26.2 642 273.2 787.6 5719

20:004=21:00| 297.2 54.8 9.0 4.4 21.2 34.6 88.2 509.4 449.5 192.4 86.0 8.0 2.2 12 33.6 55.6 379.0 322.4 345.8 75.6 12.2 8.8 20.4 39.6 1250 627.4 541.6

21:008222:00] 3148 49.2 6.8 5.0 17.4 31.4 78.6 503.2 448.8 196.2 104.8 3.4 3.2 12 27.2 32.4 368.4 333.2 362.4 74.6 104 8.6 17.0 28.8 85.8 587.6 535.1

22:00P23.00] 3156 47.2 9.6 4.6 16.8 258 53.0 472.6 442.3 198.8 92.6 6.2 2.0 14 116 20.6 333.2 316.9 375.6 75.4 114 3.4 17.6 21.8 62.4 567.6 532.3

23.00] 00:00f 267.6 46.8 10.0 7.0 16.2 17.4 35.2 400.2 391.9 174.6 85.6 8.8 4.2 0.2 9.4 9.8 292.6 289.2 338.8 63.6 8.8 4.6 16.6 16.0 40.2 488.6 473.8

|T0tal |6100.6 1028.6 5222 217.0 471.0 1078.6 2700.4] 12118.4 10325.1|| 4560.2 14208 4278 117.2 158 696.8 1457.6] 8696.2 7494.1” 6900.0 1210.8 627.6 229.2 478.8 1404.0 4279.2| 15129.6] 11954.4




Appendix 4

A “ Client: Transport for London PCU Values
| Rigid 2
- 8 Project: 3378-LON-JB Farringdon Car/ Lgv|Ldn taxi| axle HGV PSV MC PC
Site: 2. Farringdon Street/ West Smithfield/ Snow Hill 1.0 1.0 15 2.3 2.0 0.4 0.2
c Date: 5 weekday Average

DESTINATION SUMMARY

Destination : Arm A Destination : Arm B Destination : Arm C
Time Time Car/ Rigid 2 PCU Rigid 2 PCU Rigid 2 PCU
from To Lgv Ldn taxi axle HGV PSV MC PC| Total Total Car/ Lgv_Ldn taxi axle HGV PSV MC PC| Total Total Car/ Lgv_Ldn taxi axle HGV PSV MC PC| Total Total

00:00| 01:00f 254.4 44.6 8.2 7.2 16.8 6.6 116 349.4 366.4 60.4 15.0 5.0 5.6 0.0 2.0 18 89.8 96.9 295.2 69.0 10.0 4.4 16.6 7.6 13.8 416.6 428.3

01:00f 02:00| 1724 256 8.6 10.2 3.6 4.2 3.8 228.4 244.0 70.8 6.4 3.6 4.4 0.0 0.8 0.2 86.2 93.1 230.2 38.2 11.2 8.8 6.0 5.8 4.8 305.0 320.7

02:00f 03:00f 151.0 12.4 9.6 9.8 2.6 3.8 4.0 193.2 207.9 67.6 2.0 2.4 3.8 0.0 18 0.4 78.0 82.7 176.4 17.8 14.8 9.0 2.2 4.2 3.4 227.8 243.9

03:00] 04:.00f 1352 10.4 17.6 126 2.2 3.4 3.0 184.4 207.3 65.8 0.8 4.2 2.8 0.0 0.8 0.6 75.0 79.8 183.8 9.8 16.6 8.2 2.2 2.4 0.8 223.8 2429

04:.00f 05:00| 160.4 6.2 22.4 114 4.2 11.0 3.2 218.8 239.9 78.2 0.6 5.0 1.0 0.0 2.2 0.0 87.0 89.5 194.6 7.4 17.6 12.4 4.0 7.0 4.8 247.8 268.7

05:00] 06:00f 219.2 7.2 32.0 12.2 134 15.0 6.4 305.4 336.5 100.2 12 9.2 2.0 0.0 3.4 7.6 123.6 122.7 297.6 8.4 28.4 15.0 9.2 7.8 14.0 380.4 407.4

06:00| 07:00f 363.6 13.8 46.0 13.4 21.0 32.8 47.8 538.4 541.9 84.8 1.0 12.2 3.8 0.0 12.2 25.6 139.6 122.8 467.2 17.4 59.2 13.2 21.4 38.4 61.4 678.2 674.2

07:00] 08:00f 3146 28.4 45.6 12.8 33.0 648 181.0 680.2 569.0 87.4 8.0 14.4 54 0.0 426 1232 281.0 1711 456.4 44.4 58.4 20.0 25.0 926 257.0 953.8 772.8

08:00] 09:00f 261.0 46.4 47.4 12.8 264 1206 575.6] 1090.2 624.1 102.6 20.4 13.8 4.2 0.0 70.8  365.0 576.8 254.7 417.2 82.6 64.4 14.8 256 1414 605.8| 1351.8 859.4

09:00| 10:00f 2752 69.8 44.0 13.0 28.2 914 4412 962.8 622.1 89.4 20.0 158 3.0 0.2 582 215.0 401.6 206.7 414.4  102.0 57.2 16.6 26.8 93.2 367.4| 10776 804.7

10:00f 11:00| 276.8 57.2 43.2 16.0 26.0 49.2 93.4 561.8 526.0 88.6 19.8 14.6 4.2 0.0 25.0 37.4 189.6 157.4 396.0 96.0 58.6 154 30.6 57.0 84.2 737.8 716.2

11:.00f 12:00| 289.2 72.0 48.2 12.0 25.0 46.6 65.8 558.8 542.9 81.6 20.6 12.8 3.8 0.2 18.8 23.8 161.6 142.8 391.6 90.2 59.2 16.4 256 59.0 57.0 699.0 694.5

12:00f 13:00| 267.6 80.2 41.0 14.2 252 50.8 80.0 559.0 528.7 79.0 214 10.6 18 0.0 23.4 19.8 156.0 133.8 358.4 90.0 52.4 15.6 252 63.0 66.0 670.6 651.7

13:.00f 14:00| 273.4 83.0 35.0 118 26.6 54.6 60.8 545.2 523.2 80.0 22.6 10.6 2.0 0.0 25.0 21.0 161.2 137.3 3884 1014 45.6 16.4 26.6 66.0 82.2 726.6 692.0

14.001=15:00| 277.2 86.0 30.8 11.0 26.0 45.2 716 547.8 519.1 81.8 26.6 17.6 3.6 0.4 18.6 18.8 167.4 155.1 402.2 1074 40.0 10.4 24.4 75.2 77.0 736.6 687.8

15:.0 \Y16:OO 2614 105.0 28.0 126 28.2 59.2 82.0 576.4 533.9 89.2 25.4 118 18 0.2 222 21.4 172.0 150.0 4248 103.8 40.8 10.6 26.2 84.0 92.4 782.6 718.7

16:OQU17:00 296.0 100.0 27.6 9.8 26.8 772 1542 691.6 575.3 99.2 20.4 12.4 18 0.2 254 34.6 194.0 159.8 444.8 96.2 24.4 6.4 248 1254 1988 920.8 731.8

17.064< 18:00] 2932 1014 16.8 7.2 276 1190 3752 940.4 614.2 100.2 28.0 5.2 2.0 0.2 31.6 98.0 265.2 173.2 446.8 1104 18.4 3.2 264 2014 601.4| 1408.0 845.8

18:0d]U 19:00] 341.0 93.4 14.4 54 236 1234 458.6] 1059.8 656.7 116.0 256 2.4 0.6 0.4 328 1210 298.8 184.7 462.0 84.6 136 5.0 258 176.2 744.0] 1511.2 849.4

19:.0 20:00{ 338.8 86.2 17.6 4.4 26.4 67.0 2258 766.2 586.3 84.0 29.0 2.4 2.0 0.2 158 60.6 194.0 140.0 404.6 83.0 12.2 4.2 29.0 954 2734 901.8 666.4

20:004=21:00| 353.4 90.2 13.0 8.2 21.0 37.2 1074 630.4 560.3 83.4 30.0 2.8 2.0 0.2 126 25.4 156.4 132.7 398.6 96.2 13.4 5.2 216 58.0 136.0 729.0 620.5

21:00 iZZ:OO 372.4 95.6 10.8 9.8 18.0 26.8 75.8 609.2 568.6 81.2 28.0 12 16 0.0 8.8 14.4 135.2 121.1 419.8 105.0 8.6 5.4 17.6 518 106.6 714.8 627.4

22:00P23:00] 383.8 1038 12.0 3.8 18.6 21.8 55.6 599.4 5714 84.4 23.2 16 2.2 0.4 52 10.4 127.4 120.0 421.8 88.2 136 4.0 16.8 32.2 70.0 646.6 600.1

23.00] 00:00f 3476 87.6 8.6 6.6 16.8 146 31.6 513.4 509.0 77.8 22.0 3.2 3.4 0.0 4.6 9.6 120.6 116.2 355.6 86.4 158 5.8 16.2 23.6 44.0 547.4 529.7

|T0tal |6678.8 1506.4 6284 2482 487.2 1146.2 3215.4] 13910.6 11774.6|| 2033.6 4180 1948 68.8 2.6 4646 1255.6] 4438.0 3344.2” 8848.4 17358 7544 2464 4758 1568.6 3966.2| 17595.6] 14654.8




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 110



Agenda Iltem 13

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3, 5, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 15

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 147



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 17

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 149



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 157



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 18

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 159



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 165



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 167



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Public Minutes
	4 Revenue and Capital Budgets - 2017/18 and 2018/19
	Operating Summary OR2017-18 to LAB 17-18 to OR2018+19 Final
	Operating Statement variance notes OR 2017-18 to 2017-18 LAB Appendix 4A V1
	Operating Statement variance notes  OR 2016-17 to OR 2017-18 Appendix 4B V1

	5 Draft Departmental Business Plan 2018/19 - Markets and Consumer Protection
	Market Comittee Business Plan Report - high-level plan
	16. MCP Re-Draft 2018-19 High Level Business Plan - Markets Committee 09-11-17 (3)

	6 Risk Management
	8 Smithfield Market - Condenser Water Cooling System - Update
	9 North - South Cycle Superhighway Phase 2
	Appendices 1 to 4 - Compressed
	Agenda
	9 North - South Cycle Superhighway Phase 2
	Cycle Superhighway Appendix 2
	Cycle Superhighway Appendix 3
	Cycle Superhighway Appendix 4



	13 Non-Public Minutes
	15 Museum of London Relocation – Project Update
	Museum of London Relocation Project - Appenix 1 Site Plan

	17 Markets Debt Arrears - Period Ending 30th September 2017
	Appendix 2 Markets Cttee Report Qtr 2 to 30.09.2017

	18 Annual Waivers Report 2016/17
	Annual Waivers Report 2016-17 NP - appendix 1
	Annual Waivers Report 2016-17 NP - appendix 2




